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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Education 
Orange City School District 
Cuyahoga County 
32000 Chagrin Boulevard 
Pepper Pike, Ohio 44124 

We have audited the financial statements of the Orange City School District, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (the 
District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated November 
22, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations. 
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination 
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting 
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration 
ofthe internal control overfinancial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control 
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the 
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements 
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters 
involving the internal control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have 
reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated November 22, 1999. 

This report is intended for the information and use of the finance committee, management, and the Board 
of Education, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Y-----h 

November 22. 1999 
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Board of Education Offices 

32000 Chagrin Boulevard * Pepper Pike, Ohio 44124-5974 . (216) 831-8600 X 605 - (216) X31-5049 FAX 

November 22, 1999 

Board of Education Members and Residents of the Orange City School District: 

We are pleased to submit to you the Orange City School District’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR). This report provides full disclosure of the financial operation of the 
School District for the fiscal year ended June 30. 1999. This CAFR includes an opinion from the 
Auditor of the State of Ohio and conforms to generally accepted accounting principles as 
applicable to governmental entities. 

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness of 
the presentation. including all disclosures, rests with the School District. To the best of our 
knowledge and belief. the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a 
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various 
funds and account groups of the School District. This report will provide the taxpayers of the 
Orange City School District with comprehensive financial data in a format which will enable 
them to gain an understanding of the School District’s financial affairs. Copies will be made 
available to the local villages and cities comprising the School District, the Cuyahoga County 
Public Library, major taxpayers. financial rating services. and other interested parties. 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections as follows: 

1. The Introductory Section. which contains a Table of Contents, Letter of 
Transmittal. List of Principal Offtcials. an Organizational Chart of the School 
District, GFOA Certificate of Achievement and ASBO Certificate of Excellence. 

2. The Financial Section. which begins with the Report of Independent Accountants 
and includes the General Purpose Financial Statements and Notes which provide 
an overview of the School District’s financial position and operating results, the 
Combining Statements by Fund Type, and other schedules that provide detailed 
information relative to the General Purpose Financial Statements. 

3. The Statistical Section. which presents social and economic data, financial trends 
and the fiscal capacity of the Orange City School District. 
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More than a hundred years ago. a one-room school was built on land donated by the mother 01 
President James A. Garfield. This school and seven other one-room schools located throughout 
the area were consolidated into the Orange School District. 

Two stories of the central part of the old high school building were completed in 1924. the year 
which Dr. Terry Wickham. former president of Heidelberg College. became superintendent. 

The first senior class graduated in 1927 with eleven members. At that time. all grades were 

located in one building at the site of the current Orange High School. 

Since 1939. Orange has been a member of the North Central Association of Colleges and 
Secondary Schools. It has continuously held a high rating among schools certified by the State 
Board of Education. 

In the fall of 1956. Pepper Pike Elementary School was completed as the first separate 
elementary building in the Orange School District. In 1994. the Pepper Pike Elementaq School 
was inducted into the Blue Ribbon Hall of Fame as a Hall of Fame School by the Ohio 
Association of Elementary School Administrators. In 1958. Moreland Hills Elementary School 
opened with all elementary grades housed for the first time in buildings apart from the high 
school. 

Enrollment from kindergarten through grade 12 increased from 500 students in 1939 to 1.750 in 
the spring of 1958. Eighty-two students were graduated in 1958. 

The School District then experienced a period of successful expansion as a result of the support 
of the citizens of the community and long-range planning by the Board of Education. 
administration and faculty. 

Brady Middle School opened in 1965. It was named for Ballard Brady. superintendent from 1951 
to 1967. Brady Middle School educates children in grades 5, 6. and 7. 

Orange High School was remodeled and expanded many times with the last renovation in 1973. 
The science wing completed the Orange High School complex. In the 1990-91 school year, 
Orange High School was recognized as a Blue Ribbon School of Excellence by the United States 
Department of Education. Throughout the Orange City School Districts’ history. a heavy 
emphasis has been placed on the development of the whole person with the academic mission at 
the forefront of the school’s attention. 
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The Orange School campus is located on one hundred seventy-six beautifully wooded acres in 
the Chagrin Valley. approximately fifteen miles east of Cleveland. The campus setting offers 
students the advantage of moving between buildings for academic offerings, performances. and 
sports programs. as well as the opportunity to study the environment in a natural setting. The 
School District encompasses five separate municipalities: Pepper Pike, Hunting Valley. 
Moreland Hills, Orange Village. and Woodmere as well as portions of Solon. Bedford Heights. 
and Warrensville Heights. 

The School District’s 2,258 students are bused daily to the campus consisting of four main 
school buildings and an administration building: Moreland Hills Elementary School (K-2). 
Pepper Pike Elementary School (3-4). Brady Middle School (S-7). and Orange High School 
(S-12). The Orange School District also manages the Community Schools and Recreation 
Department which includes preschool, senior adults, enrichment programs for students and adults 
plus a wide variety of sports and summer activities. The recreation department utilizes all School 
District facilities in concert with the school system. The Orange City School District includes 72 
students who attend the Gund School which adjoins our campus and serves as a residential 
facility for students with special needs. 

The population within the School District is multi-racial and multi-cultural, with many students 
from other countries. Minority groups comprise approximately 20 percent of the student 
population in the School District. Orange parents are generally college-educated and involved in 
professional careers. The population has a very high regard for education and expects an 
educational program which produces educated. mature, competent. and skilled high school 
graduates who are able to attend the college of their first or second choice. Over 95 percent of 
Orange graduates pursue higher education. Over the past twenty years, residents have passed all 
school operating levies placed on the ballot for their approval. The last operating levy. which was 
on the ballot in 1995. was approved by 73 percent of the voters. A 36.5 million-dollar bond issue 
was approved in November 1998 by 76 percent of the voters. The Orange School District is 
fortunate to have residents who believe in, and are willing to support with tax dollars, a high 
quality of education for all children. 

Organizational Structure 

The Orange City School Board of Education approved the Superintendent’s recommendation for 
a central office re-organization plan in January 1998. The plan re-structured central office 
administrative roles and support for the Superintendent of Schools. New job titles and job 
descriptions for central office administrators were established as follows: Director of Human 
Resources/Instructional Services; Director of Educational Program/Student Services; Director of 
Operations/Business Services; Treasurer/Director of Budget Services. 

The Superintendent serves as the Chief Administrative Officer of the School District, responsible 
for providing educational and administrative management leadership for the total operation of the 
School District. 
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The ‘Treasurer is the Chief Financial Officer of the School District and is responsible for 
maintaining records of all financial matters. issuing warrants and paying liabilities incurred by 
the School District. The Treasurer also serves as custodian of all School District funds with the 
responsibility for the investment of funds as specified by law. The Treasurer of the Orange 
School District reports directly to the five member Board of Education which serves as the taxing 
authority. the contracting body. and the policy developers for the School District. The Board 
adopts the annual operating budget and approves all expenditures of the School District‘s 
monies. 

The remaining administrative team recommended by the Superintendent and appointed by the 
School Board include the following: Director of Administrative and Personnel Services. Director 
of Academic and Student Services. Coordinator of Special Education. Director of 
Communications. Director of Recreation Coordinator of Technology, Assistant Treasurer. 
Supervisor of Transportation Services, Supervisor of Food Services. Director of Operations and 
Business Services. and Campus Supervisor. This re-organization plan reduced the overall 
number of central office administrators by one position in the School District. 

In previous years, the School District employed a Grants Coordinator. Those responsibilities 
became part of the duties of the Director of Educational Programs. It has been an on-going goal 
of the Board of Education to continue to review and limit the number of central office positions 
in the School District. The goal of reducing one position in the School District was achieved in 
the overall re-organization plan with each of the director level positions and each of the building 
principals reporting directly to the Superintendent. 

The School District has been implementing various aspects of Site Based Management with the 
building principals providing site leadership and the central office directors attempting to provide 
the highest quality services in order to fulfill the educational needs of the schools. Each director 
has a new and revised job description that includes an additional service aspect involving 
instruction. students. business. and budgeting. 

The Reporting Entity 

The School District has reviewed its reporting entity definition in order to insure conformance 
with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14. “The Financial Reporting 
Entity.” In evaluating how to define the School District for financial reporting purposes, 
management has considered all agencies. departments and organizations making up the Orange 
City School District (the primary government) and its potential component units. 

The Lakeshore Northeast Ohio Computer Association and Ohio Schools’ Council are jointly 
governed organizations whose relationship to the School District is described in Note 9 to the 
general purpose financial statements. 
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The Orange Schools will foster an academically excellent educational system to develop 
critical-thinking and civic-minded students who will contribute to our global society. This 
system will encourage the support and participation of the community it serves. The mission is 
based on the following basic beliefs and principles: 

. Public education is a key element of a democratic society. 

. All students have the ability and the right to grow intellectually. Thus, Orange 
Schools has a responsibility to provide programs and an environment to stimulate 
that growth. 

. While the primary focus of the Orange Schools is K-12 education, community 
participation and involvement is encouraged. This involvement enhances K-12 
education, provides better use of facilities and fosters continued learning for all 
residents. 

. High expectations promote high performance. All students and staff are expected 
to work to their highest potential. 

. Given the current state of public education funding, financial support from the 
entire community. both business and personal, is vital to a successful program. 

. The Orange Schools will maintain excellence through a continuous improvement 
process. 

The educational plan for the School District consists of the following: 

1. Educational Programs. In order to develop students who will think critically to 
solve problems, acquire and apply knowledge, communicate effectively, utilize 
new technologies and are civic-minded, the Orange School District will: 

. Design the schedule in each building to maximize available instructional 
time and to enhance student achievement. 

. Incorporate at each grade level curricular experiences which involve 
students and teachers in using instructional technology. 

. Maintain, improve and create programs which involve students from all 
grade levels in citizenship and school/community service programs. 

. Encourage student selection of electives, co-curricular and extra-curricular 
offerings which will contribute to the development of a well-qualified and 
well-rounded graduate. 
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. Encourage involvement of all parties when implementing change or 
enacting new policies. programs and procedures. 

. Value the contributions of all employees while establishing an atmosphere 
which enhances continuous improvement of both the individual and the 
system. 

. Establish a complementary and/or extended curriculum through courses 
offered by the Orange Community Education and Recreation Department. 

. Analyze, plan. implement and evaluate strategies which demonstrate a 
commitment to excellence as measured by student test scores. college 
admissions. artistic and athletic accomplishments and other indicators of 
success. 

. Encourage all parents to participate in the continuous improvement 
process. 

. Plan and articulate a curriculum which is consistent and sequential 

. Improve the current parent/teacher communication process regarding 
student welfare. 

2. Fiscal Management. To enhance the efficiency of the business/finance operations. 
the Orange School District will: 

. Improve communications regarding financial operations through fiscal 
calendars. spending and revenue plans and financial forecasts. 

. Pursue appropriate nontraditional school funding 

. Provide a clear accounting of the revenues and expenditures from school 
operation and recreation levies. 

. Revise and implement an on-going marketing plan for the passage of 
school tax issues. 

. Complete the appropriation process in a manner which allows the Board of 
Education to act prior to October I 

3. Community Relations. To improve interaction with the community, the School 
District will: 

. Periodically survey residents to determine where further communication is 
necessary and to evaluate the extent of satisfaction or dissatisfaction with 
the School District. 
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. Keep the community well-informed by frequently and routinely providing 
news about the programs and facilities. 

. Identify and communicate with Orange Alumni 

4. Business/Operation Services. To maintain and improve buildings and facilities. 
transportation and food service. the School District will: 

. Work with the staff to analyze cost effectiveness of present programs and 
offer recommendations. 

. Involve support staff in continuous improvement opportunities 

. Work with representative groups to formulate a plan and recommend 
solutions to issues of space. programming, and maintenance. 

5. Board of Education Operations. To foster greater effectiveness in 
Board/Administrative operations, the Orange Board of Education will: 

. Maintain a long-range strategic plan including financial, programmatic, 
personnel and facility components. 

. Develop an appropriate plan to increase the Board of Education‘s visibility 
and knowledge. 

. Explain with more regularity and intensity the realities of Ohio school 
finance in general and the finances of the Orange Schools in particular. 

. Re-design the system by which the Board of Education sets agendas. 
tracks issues and completes its annual evaluation. 

. Increase public attendance at Board of Education meetings. 

Major InitiativesjLw School Year 1998-99 

The Orange Board of Education and the Orange Schools administration worked to continue to 
improve quality education for all children and to provide prudent financial management to 
adequately fund this quality education. 

During the 1998-1999 school year. the Orange Schools embarked on the first phase of the 
Orange School Master Plan as a result of the successful passage of the 36.5 million dollar bond 
issue. The first phase consisted of improvements and renovations to the football stadium. The 
improvements consist of a new stadium plaza just north of the home-side bleachers. Trees will 
be planted in the fall near the stadium. Additional landscaping was completed around the 
stadium. The plaza will create a large area for students and parents to gather outside the stadium 
prior to events. 
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A new S-layer all weather track surface was also installed over a new asphalt base. The 
rubberized surface makes the new track more pliable. The track has been extended from 6 lanes 

to 8 lanes. making it eligible for District and regional track meets. 

The old wooden grandstand bleachers were replaced with new aluminum risers and seats. 
Several viewing areas were created to accommodate wheel chairs. as well as a ramp for eas) 

wheel chair accessibility. A wider front walkway. handrails. and fencing have improved the 
safety of the new bleachers. 

New field lighting poles were installed to create more uniform lighting for games. Additional 
lights were added underneath the home-side bleachers as well as other areas surrounding the 

tield. 

A new addition is under construction at the north end of Orange High School. This addition will 
house a 25.000 square foot Multi-purpose addition. Site work has been started. and the project is 

expected to be completed in December 2000. 

Site clearing has begun on a new elementary school to house K-S students of the Orange Cit) 
Schools. The site is located on the one hundred seventy-six acre school complex behind Brady 
Middle School. The new elementary school is planned to hold 900 elementary students. 

Completion of the new elementary is planned for summer 2001. DeJong & Associates. 
Educational Planners of Dublin. Ohio developed educational specifications for the design and 
construction of the new elementary. Renovation to Brady Middle School and Orange High 
School and improvements for the entire campus. roadways and utilities are in the various stages 

of planning. 

Another major project completed this year included a complete roof replacement at Pepper Pike 
Elementary. Removal of an existing underground fiberglass gasoline tank and the installation of 

a new above ground diesel fuel tank were also completed. The School District conducted safety 
inspections of all the fire equipment and playgrounds. making the necessary repairs. 

The District utilizes the L.akeshore Northeast Ohio Computer Association to process financial 
transactions. The association has provided information that the accounting and payroll systems 

are or will be compliant with the year 2000 before December 3 1. 1999. 

Fuhwe Projecrs 

The Board of Education engaged and retained the firm of FanningiHowey & Associates of Celia, 
Ohio. Representatives of Fanningiflowey immediately began work in the School District to bring 

forward recommendations to the Board of Education on an Orange Schools Master Plan to 
redesign the entire campus as a result of the bond referendum. 



Curriculum and Instruction Focus 

Curriculum and instruction initiatives in the School District focused upon: 

1) The completion of a two year negotiated contract with the Orange Teachers 
Association included a study examining the high school schedule and exploring 
possibilities for change for the 2000-2001 and following school years. The work 
of the Committee must be completed by December 15, 1999. 

2) Implementation of a $75,000 State funded-regional training computer center at 
Orange High School. 

3) Adoption of 3*d and 41h Grade Science Textbooks 

Orange students continued to thrive, grow and achieve within the School District’s curriculum. 
Some examples of their successes were: 

1) A graduation rate of 99 percent with 95 percent of graduates continuing their 
education at an institution of higher learning. 

2) 316 advanced placement exams taken with 91 percent of all scores being a 3 or 
better, placing Orange students in the top 1 percent of all test takers in the 
Country. 

Orange High School. recognized by Newsweek for ranking 29’h in the nations‘ top 
100 high schools for advanced placement testing. 

4) 17 national merit scholarship winners. 7 semi-finalist and IO commended 
students. representing 11 percent of the graduating class. 

51 State report card rated Orange schools as one of only 19 effective schools in Ohio 
by meeting 18 of 19 performance criteria. 

The School District takes great pride in all of its students achievements and recognizes the need 
to both maintain and enhance its curriculum to ensure our students’ future academic and 
intellectual growth. 

Economic Outlook 

The boundaries of the School District include residential parcels with a small portion of 
industrial/commercial property near interstate highway systems. Transportation access provides 
an excellent backdrop for commercial-industrial development. Interstate 271, our western 
boundary. and access to Interstate 480 less than five minutes away and the Cleveland-Hopkins 
International Airport about thirty minutes travel time to the west makes the School District a 
great location for all types of professionals. In addition, Interstate 480 permits easy connection 
with Interstates 71 and 77. leading south to Columbus and north to Cleveland. The Orange City 
School District is an ideal suburban location to major hospitals and businesses in the Cleveland 
area. 
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Eighty-three percent of the School District’s valuation is comprised of residential property which 
proves the School District is an ideal suburban setting. The property valuation has almost 
doubled since fiscal year 1988. The homes in the School District continue to increase in market 
value. During the same period of time. the industrial base has increased fifty percent. The 
current economic trend in the nation of keeping and attracting businesses has had its effect on the 
School District through some local tax abatement for businesses. 

Property taxes make up 74 percent of the School District’s revenue. The School District had a 
9% increase in property tax revenue during fiscal year 1999 due to Cuyahoga County selling real 
estate tax delinquencies. Therefore. the School District received all of its prior year 
delinquencies during fiscal year 1999. 

The School Districts’ enrollment has increased along with the growth of the five municipalities. 
The 1998-99 enrollment of 2.258 compared with the 1985-86 enrollment of 1.886 reflects an 
increase of 372 students over the thirteen year period. Enrollment is projected to remain flat over 
the next five years. 

The funding structure of public education in Ohio is such that school districts receive very little 
revenue growth as a result of inflationary increases in their tax base. As a result. districts 
throughout Ohio must place funding issues on the ballot to receive significant revenue growth. 

The School District passed a 5.55 mill operating levy and a .95 mill recreation levy in May 1995. 
These levies generate approximately $3.8 million annually for the general fund and $590.000 for 
the recreation programs. These levies continue to provide the funds needed to maintain current 
program levels through fiscal year 2000. The issues passed with a 73 percent vote of confidence. 
A 36.5 million-dollar bond issue was passed with a 76 percent vote of confidence in November 
199x. 

On March 24. 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain portions of 
the Ohio school funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed the effect of its ruling to allow 
the Ohio Genera1 Assembly to design a plan to remedy the perceived defects in the in the system. 
Declared unconstitutional was the State’s “school foundation program” which provides 
significant amounts of monetary support to the School District. 

Since the Supreme Court ruling. numerous pieces of legislation have been passed by the Ohio 
General Assembly in an attempt to address the issues identified by the Court. The Court of 
Common Pleas in Perry County has reviewed the new laws and, in a decision on February 26. 
1999. determined they are not sufficiently responsive to the constitutional issues raised under the 
“thorough and efficient” clause of the Ohio Constitution. The State has appealed the decision 
made by the Court of Common pleas to the Ohio Supreme Court. At this time, the Ohio 
Supreme Court has not rendered an opinion on this issue. The decision of the Court of Common 
Pleas in Perry County has been stayed by the Ohio Supreme Court. and as such, school districts 
are still operating under the laws that the Common Pleas Court declared unconstitutional. 



Financial Information 

Iniernul Accounting and Budgetary Control 

The School District’s accounting system is organized on a “fund” basis. Each fund (and account 
group) is a distinct self-balancing accounting entity. Reports for general governmental 
operations are presented on the modified accrual basis whereby revenues are recognized when 
measurable and available, and expenditures are recognized when goods and services are received. 
Reports of the School District’s proprietary operations are presented on the accrual basis whereby 
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses when incurred. 

In developing the School District’s accounting system much consideration was given to the 
adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide 
reasonable. but not absolute. assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from 
unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial 
statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance is 
based on the assumption that the cost of internal accounting controls should not exceed the 
benefits expected to be derived from their implementation. 

The School District utilizes a fully automated accounting system as well as an automated system 
of control for fixed assets and payroll. These systems. coupled with the manual auditing of each 
invoice prior to payment. ensures that the financial information generated is both accurate and 
reliable. 

At the beginning of each fiscal year. the Board of Education adopts either a temporary 
appropriation measure or a permanent appropriation measure for that fiscal year. If a temporary 
appropriation is first adopted, a permanent appropriation measure must be adopted upon receipt 
from the County Auditor of an Amended Certificate of Estimated Resources based on final 
assessed values and tax rates. which is usually within three months after the start of the fiscal 
year. 

Annual appropriations may not exceed the County Budget Commission’s official estimate of 
resources. The County Auditor must certify that the Board of Education’s appropriation 
measures, including any supplements or amendments, do not exceed the amount set forth in the 
latest of those official estimates. 

All disbursements and transfers of cash between funds require appropriation authority from the 
Board. Budgets are controlled at the object account level within a function and fund. All 
purchase order requests must be approved by the Building Principal and certified by the 
Treasurer; necessary funds are then encumbered and purchase orders released to vendors. Those 
requests which exceed the available appropriation are rejected until additional appropriations are 
secured. 

The accounting system used by the School District provides interim financial reports which 
detail year-to date expenditures and encumbrances versus the original appropriation plus any 
additional appropriations made to date. In addition to interim financial statements, each 
administrator and school principal is furnished monthly reports showing the status of the budget 
accounts for which they are responsible. 
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As an additional safeguard. all employees are covered by a blanket bond, and certain individuals 
in policy-making roles are covered by a separate. higher limit bond. 

The basis of accounting and the various funds and account groups utilized by the School District 
are fully described in Note 2 of the financial statemmts. Additional information on the School 
District’s budgetary accounting can also be found in Note 2. 

The following schedule presents a summary of governmental funds‘ revenues for the fiscal years 
ended June 30. 1998 and 1999, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in 
relation to the prior year’s revenues. 

Percent 
1998 1999 of Percent 

Amount Amount Total Change Change 
Revenues: 

Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 
Tuition and Fees 
Extracurricular Activities 
Contributions and 

Donations 
Charges for Services 
Rentals 
Miscellaneous 

$22.571.130 $24.675,632 73.97% $2.104.502 9.32% 
4.795.933 6.105.356 18.30 I .309.423 27.30 

503.422 1.243.485 3.73 740,063 147.01 
1.385.119 954.258 2.86 (430.861) (31.11) 

152.260 156,101 0.47 3,841 (2.93) 

25.869 136,770 0.41 110,901 428.70 
40.649 39,459 0.12 (1.190) (2.93) 
31,382 27,822 0.08 (3.560) (11.34) 

173.269 21.018 0.06 (352.251) (87.87) 

Total Revenues $29.679.033 $33.359.901 100.00% $3.680.868 12.40% 

The most significant revenue source to the School District is taxes which continued to grow by 
9% in fiscal year 1999 and a settlement from the County for delinquent taxes. 

Intergovernmental revenues increased because of additional funds through the revised School 
Foundation program 

Interest income has increased as a result of the sale of bonds and notes. This is a result of the 
passage of the 36.5 million dollar bond levy approved November 1998. 

Tuition and Fees collections fell as a result of the tuition billing changes in fiscal year 1999. 

The increase in contributions and donations is due to monies received for renovations to the 
Senior Citizens Community Recreation Center. 

Miscellaneous revenue returned to its normal level after a one-time refund received from the 
Bureau of Workers’ Compensation during fiscal year 1998. 
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The followring schedule presents a summary of governmental funds’ expenditures for the tiscal 
years ended June 30, 1998 and 1999, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases 
in relation to the prior year‘s expenditures. 

1998 

Amount 
1999 

Amount 

Percent 
of 

Total Change 
Expenditures: 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular $10.874.248 $11.934.456 

Special 
Vocational 

Support Services: 
Pupils 
Instructional Staff 
Board of Education 
Administration 
Fiscal 
Business 
Operation and 

Maintenance Of Plant 
Pupil Transportation 
Central 

Operation of Non- 
Instructional Services 

Extracurricular Activities 
Capital Outlay 
Debt Service: 

Principal Retirement 
Interest and 

3.184,939 4,010,123 
462.098 82,633 

I .629.42 I 13804,779 
1.240.577 1.253,5X8 

77.567 82,571 

1,711,933 1.932.245 
727,401 70 1,767 

90.817 412.272 

3.057,897 2.957.963 

I.9463960 2,143,592 
746.7 I3 728.006 

227,235 252.887 

902.521 960,062 

977.160 1.758.291 

24.8 I2 8.847 

37.00% $1.060.208 

12.44 825.184 
0.26 (379.465) 

9.75% 
25.91 

(82.12) 

5.60 175,358 10.76 
3.89 13.01 I I .05 
0.26 5,004 6.45 

6.00 220.3 I2 12.87 

2.18 (25.634) (3.52) 

I .28 321,455 353.96 

9.18 (99,934) 

6.65 196.632 
2.27 (18,707) 

(3.27) 

10.10 
(2.5 I) 

0.78 25.652 Il.29 
2.98 57,541 6.38 

5.46 781.131 79.94 

0.03 (15,965) (64.34) 

Fiscal Charges 123.432 I .204,963 3.74 1.081.531 

Percent 
Change 

876.22 

Total Expenditures $38.005.73 I $32.229.045 100.00% $4.223.3 I4 15.08% 

Regular instruction costs are the largest portion of the total expenditures and are increasing due 
to the the inclusion of several new grants. 

Special instruction costs are growing at a rate higher than regular instruction cost due to 
additional students identified with special needs. 

Vocational education expenditures decreased because of tuition billing changes. 

Capital outlay expenditures increased by $781,131 during fiscal year 1999. This variance was 
caused by new construction during fiscal year 1999. 

Interest and Fiscal Charges increased by $1.08 1 S3 1 due to the issuance of bonds and notes. 
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General Fund B&me. The fund balance of the general fund increased from $7.185.056 at June 
30, 1998 to $8.352.869 at June 30, 1999. This increase is largely due to interest earned on 
investments made by the School District, intergovernmental revenues, and an increase in taxes 
due to payment of delinquent taxes. 

Finunciul Highli$ts - Entrrpri~e FM&. Food service. uniform school supplies and recreation 
are classified as enterprise operations since they resemble those activities found in private 
industry; management periodically desires to determine the amount of profit/loss resulting from 
these operations that are significantly financed from user fees. In total, the enterprise funds had a 
net income of $351.731 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. Of the proprietary funds. the 
Food Service enterprise fund had deficit retained earnings at June 30, 1999. Management is 
aware of the deficit and is analyzing the operation. 

Financial Highlights Fiduciarv Funds. The trust funds carried on the financial records of the 
School District include a memoiial expendable trust fund and a scholarship nonexpendable with 
assets totaling $107.540. 

General Fixed Assets. The general fixed assets of the School District are used to carry on the 
main education and support function of the School District and are not financial resources 
available for expenditure. The total general fixed assets at June 30. 1999 was $32.445.179. Such 
assets are accounted for at historical cost. Depreciation is not recognized on general fixed assets. 

Deb/ Administration. At June 30, 1999. there was $29,500,000 in general obligation bonds and 
$39,000.000 in notes outstanding. As of June 30, 1999, the overall debt margin was $3,014.420 
and the unvoted debt margin was $747,673. The School District received an “AA” credit rating 
from Moody‘s Investor Service. Inc. 

Cmh Munqemenr. The Board of Education has an aggressive cash management program which 
consists of expediting the receipt of revenues and prudently depositing cash which is insured by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance corporation as well as investing available cash in instruments 
issued by the United States Government. The total amount of interest earned was $1.348.480 for 
the fiscal year ended June 30. 1999, $717.527 being credited directly to the general fund. The 
program is beneficial because of access to daily balances which enables the Board of Education 
to maintain minimum balance accounts and invest to the maximum extent. 

Protection of the School District‘s deposits is provided by the federal deposit insurance 
corporation as well as by qualified securities pledged by the institution holding the assets. By 
law. financial institutions may establish a collateral pool to cover all public deposits. The face 
value of the pooled collateral must equal at least 110 percent of public funds deposited. 
Collateral is held bv trustees including the Federal Reserve Bank and designated third party 
trustees of the finaniial institutions. 

Risk Mmagement. All employees of the Orange City School District are covered by a blanket 
bond while certain positions in decision/policy making roles are covered by separate, higher 
bond coverage. 

The School District contracts for general liability insurance with Nationwide Insurance. The 
limits of coverage are $1.000.000 per occurrence and $3.000.000 in aggregate and no deductible. 

The Orange Schools has insurance contracts for vehicle insurance and crime protection. The 
School District participates in the Ohio Schools Board Association Workers’ Compensation 
Group Rating Plan. 
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Pension Plans. All School District employees are covered by the state-wide School Employees 
Retirement System of Ohio (SERS) or the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS). The 
School District’s employer contributions to both systems are based on a percentage of 
employees’ salaries. State law requires the School District to pay the employer share as 
determined by each retirement system. See Note 13 to the general purpose financial statements 
for complete details. 

A words 

GFOA Cerfificate ofAchievemrnr - The Government Finance Officers Association of the United 
States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting to Orange City School District for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 
fiscal year ended June 301 1998. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of 
recogmtion in the area of governmental financial reporting. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to 
program standards. Such a report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and 
applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current 
report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are 
submitting it to GFOA. 

In addition, the School District will submit its CAFR to the Association of School Business 
Officials International. 

ASHI Certificaie - The Association of School Business Officials International (ASBO) awarded 
a Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. to the 
Orange City School District. This award certifies that the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report substantially conformed to the principles and standards of financial reporting as 
recommended and adopted by the Association of School Business Officials. This award is 
granted only after an intensive review of the financial report by an expert panel of certified 
public accountants and practicing business officials. Management believes that the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year ended June 30. 1999, will conform to 
ASBO’s principles and standards. 

Independent Audit 

State statutes require the School District to be subjected to an annual audit by an independent 
au?tor. An annual audit serves to maintain and strengthen the School District’s accounting and 
bu-getary controls. Independent auditor Jim Petro, Auditor of State, was selected to render an 
opinion on the School District’s financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999. 
The opinion appears at the beginning of the financial section of this report. 

Pursuant to statute, the State prescribes a uniform accounting system to standardize accounting 
classification and financial reporting for all governments in Ohio. The School District adopted 
and has been in conformance with that system beginning with its financial report for 1979. 
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STATE OF OHIO 
OFFICE OFTHE AUDITOR 

JIM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 

Report of Independent Accountants 

Board of Education 
Orange City School District 
32000 Chagrin Blvd. 
Pepper Pike, Ohio 44124 

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the Orange City School 
District, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (the District) as of and forthe year ended June 30, 1999. as listed in the 
table of contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Districts 
management. Our responsrbrlrty is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance aboutwhetherthe financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the District, as of June 30. 1999, and the results of its operations and the 
cash flows of its proprietary fund type and nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued a report dated November 22, 
1999 on our consideration of the Districts internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial 
statements of the District, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group 
financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe general-purpose financial statements 
and, in our opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and therefore 
express no opinion thereon 

\ 

November 22, 1999 
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Assets and Other Debits 
Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and 
Cash Equivalents 

Receivables: 
Taxes 

ACCOUlltS 

Intergovernmental 

Accrued Interest 
Interfund Receivable 
Prepaid Items 
Inventory Held for Resale 
Materials and Supplies 
IlRWtOry 

Restricted Assets: 
Equity in Pooled Cash and 
Cash Equivalents 

Fixed Assets (Net. where applicable. 
of Accumulated Depreciation) 

Other Debits 
Amount Available in Debt Serwce 

Fund for Retirement of General 
Obli&ons 

Amount to be Provided from 
General Government Resources 

TomI Assets and Orher Debits 

Orange City School District 
Combined Balance Sheer 

Al/ Fund T>‘pes and Acrmnr Grouts 
June 30, 1999 

Governmental Fund Types 

Special 
RWenUe Debt Service 

Capital 
Projects 

$7.146.1 I I $260,035 $I ,452,218 $66.463.065 

23,053,788 
681 

1.103,411 
57.5 IO 

252 
69,719 

0 

262.232 

2.098.304 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

385,904 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

$32,079,608 $260,035 $3.550.522 $66.463.065 



Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Enterprise 

Fiduciary 
Fund Types 

Trust and 
Agency 

Account Groups 

General General 
Fined Long-Term 
ASSetS Obligations 

Totals 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

$2.063.460 $184,438 $0 $0 

74,943 
3,795 
7,256 

0 
0 
0 

25.862 

6.424 0 

0 

48,654 

0 0 0 1,723,862 13723,862 

0 0 0 385,904 

0 32,445,179 0 32,493.833 

$77,569,327 

25.227.035 
4,476 

1.110.667 
57.510 

252 
69,719 
25,862 

268,656 

0 

$2.230.394 

0 0 28,487.974 28.487.974 

$I 84.438 $32.445,179 $30.21 1,836 $167.4?5,077 

(continued) 
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Orange City School District 
Combined Balance Sheer 

AN Fund ~vpes and Accounl Groups (conrimed) 
June 30, 1999 

Governmental Fund Types 

Ge”CKll 
Special 

Revenue Debt Service 

Liabilities, 
Fund Equity and Other Credits 
Liabilities 
Accounfs Payable 
Contracts Payable 
Accrued Wages and Benefits 
Compensated Absences Payable 
Interfund Payable 
Intergovernmental Payable 
Deferred Revenue 
Undistributed Monies 
Due to Students 
Accrued Interesr Payable 
Notes Payable 
Jud_ements Payable 
Cap”al Leases Payable 
General Obligation Bonds Payable 

Fund Equity and Other Credits 
Investment in General Fixed Assets 
Contributed Capital 
Retained Earnings: 

Unreserved 
Fund Balance: 

Reserved for Encumbrances 
Reserved for Inventory 
Reserved for Budget Stabilization 
Reserved for Taxes 
Reserved for Contributions 
Unreserved, Undesignared 

Toral Fund Equity 
and Other Credk 

Total Liabiliries. Fund Equip 
and Other Credits 

$17,453 $234 $0 
0 0 0 

2.48 1,047 32,163 0 
115,461 0 0 

0 ” ” 
580,643 17,360 0 

20.512.135 0 I .826.66C 
0 0 "0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

*o,oo: 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

23,726,739 49,757 I .8X,660 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 

0 0 0 

190.228 11.192 0 
262.232 0 0 
385,904 0 0 

2.541.653 0 271,644 
0 0 0 

4.972.852 199.086 1.452.2 18 

8.352.869 2 10,278 1.723.862 ?5.607,440 

$32.079.608 $260.035 $3.550.522 $66.463.065 

$187.134 
329.292 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1.092.199 
39,247,OOO 

0 
0 
0 

40.855.625 

0 
0 

0 

4.935.578 
0 
0 
0 
0 

20.671.862 

See accompanying nofes 1” the general purpose financial statements 
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Proprietar) 
FundType 

Enterprise 

Fiduciary 
FundTypes 

Trust and 
AEUKy 

Account Groups 

General General Totals 
Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum 
ASXIS Obligations Only) 

$13.063 $0 $0 $0 $217.884 
1.492 0 0 0 330.784 

67,299 0 0 0 2,580,509 
35,009 0 0 436,630 587.100 

0 252 0 0 252 
106.468 0 0 271,196 975.667 

5.185 0 0 0 22,343,980 
0 31,475 0 0 31,475 
0 45.423 0 0 45,423 
0 0 0 0 1.092.199 
0 0 0 0 39.247.000 
0 0 0 0 20,000 
0 0 0 4.010 4,010 
0 0 0 29.500.000 29.500.000 

228.516 77,150 0 30,211,836 96,976.283 

0 0 32.445.179 0 32.445.179 
63,407 0 0 0 63.407 

1.938.471 0 0 0 1,938,471 

0 0 0 0 5.136.998 
0 0 0 0 262,232 
0 0 0 0 385,904 
0 0 0 0 2.813.297 
0 60.073 0 0 60.073 
0 47.21s 0 0 27.343233 

3.001.878 107.388 32445.179 0 70.448.794 

$2.230394 $184.438 $32.445.179 $30.211.836 $167.425.077 



Orange City School District 
ComhinedS,areme”r q,Rercnues. trpendilarrs 

and Chon‘ws ,n Fund Balances 
A,, Governmenrol Fund Types andSimi,ar Trus, Fund 

F,,r rhe FIscil, J’eor Ended June 3”. ,999 

$23.222.986 so 11.452.646 
5.361.478 563.437 115.745 

717,527 1.876 
954.25x i 

0 I56.10: 0 6,470 : 
-39,459 i 0 
27.822 

5.771 13.547 

Tom, Revenues 30.329.301 741.431 1.568.391 

Expenditures 
currenr: 

-r-.- 
instructional staff 
Board of Education 
Adm,mstrat,on 

S&ices 
Extracurricular Activities 

Capital Outlq 
Debt Service: 

Principal Retirement 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 

Other Financing Sources (Vrea) 
Proceeds of Bonds 
Proceeds ofNotes 
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 

Governmental Fund Types 

Gmeral 
Special 

RWUllK Debt Service 

11.927.617 6.839 0 
3.861.795 148.328 0 

82.633 0 0 

1,766.724 38,055 
1,183.157 70.431 

82.571 0 
1.902.703 29.542 

701.767 0 
412.272 0 

2.957.963 
2.143.592 : 

702.422 25,584 

11.640 241.247 
722.950 237.112 

0 0 

8.847 0 
842 0 

28.469.495 797.138 0 

1.859.806 (55.707) 1.568.391 

0 0 
0 

756 : 0 85.000 : 
(685.000) (6.516) (347.308) 

(684.244) 78.484 (347.3083 

Ercess o/Revenues and Other 
Financing Sources Owr /l/hder/ 
txpendirures and Ofher F;nanciny L’ses 1.175.562 22,777 1.221.083 

Fund Boionces lDe,kir) 
Beginning of Feeor 7.1X5.056 187.501 502.779 

Decrease in Reserve 
for Invmto~ (7.749) 0 0 

Fund Baiances End o/Yew $8.352.869 $210.278 $1.723362 

See accompanying notes ro the general purpose financial statements 



Capital 
Projects 

$0 $0 $24.675.632 
64.696 0 6.105.356 

524.082 1.450 1244.935 
0 8 954.258 
0 156.101 

130.300 819 137.589 
n 0 39.459 

1.70: 0 0 27.822 21.018 

720.778 2.269 33.362.170 

0 
0 
0 0 

11.934.456 
4.010~123 

82.633 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 1.804.779 
540 1.254.128 

0 82.57, 
0 I.932245 
0 701.767 
0 412.272 
0 X957.963 
0 2.143.592 
0 728.006 

0 0 252.887 
0 0 960.062 

1.758.291 0 1.758.291 

0 0 8.847 
1.204.lZl 0 I.2OJ.Y63 

2.962.412 54" 32229.585 

~2.241.634~ 1.72') 1.132.585 

29.570.3YO 0 29.570.390 
5.631 0 5.63 I 

0 0 756 
947.308 I, 1.032.308 

0 0 ,1.038.824) 

30.5‘?3.329 0 29.570.26, 

28.281.695 1.729 30.702.846 

(2.674.255, 37.517 5.238.59X 

0 0 (7.749) 

525.607.440 $39.246 S35.Y33.6Yi 





Speclnl Revenue Funds 
varivncr 

0 

18.““” 

972.176 





28.785.967 31.773.284 



Orange City School District 
Combined Statement ofRevenues, 

Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity 
Proprieta~ Fund Type and Similar Trust Fund 

For the Fiscal lhor Ended June 30. 1999 

Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Enterprise 

Fiduciary 
Fund Type 

Nonexpendable 
Trust 

Operating Revenues 
Tuition 
S&S 
Charges for Services 
Interest 
Contributions and Donations 
Other 

$951,811 $0 $951.81 I 
419.017 0 419,017 

297 0 297 
0 3,754 3,754 
0 2.551 2.55 I 

31.457 0 3 1.457 

Tom/ Operoling Revenues 1.402.582 6,305 1.408.887 

Operating Expenses 
SalarieS 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
cost of Sales 
Depreciation 
Other 

918,862 
332,775 
270,677 
I 12.909 
229.121 

84,946 
13.810 

0 
0 

0 
0 

2.500 

Totals 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

918,862 
332.775 
270.677 
I 12,909 
229,121 

84,946 
16.310 

Total Operating Expenses 1.963.100 2.500 

operatrng Income (LOSS) (560.518) 3.805 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Federal Donated Commodities 25.202 0 
Interest 99,791 0 
Property Taxes 681,141 0 
Operating Grants 99.836 0 
Interest and Fiscal Charges (237) 0 

Total Non-Open “ng Revenues (Expenses) 905,733 0 

Income Before Operating Transfers 345,215 3.805 

Operating Transfers In 6.516 0 

Net Income 351,731 3.805 

Retained Earnings/Fund Balance 
Beginning of Year 1.586.740 64.237 

Retained Earnings/Fund Balance 
End of Year 1.938.471 68.042 

Contributed Capital Beginning 
and End of Year 63.407 0 

Total Fund Equity End of Year $2.001.878 $68.042 

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements 

1.965.600 

(556.713) 

25,202 
99.79 I 

681.141 
99.836 

(237) 

905.733 

349,020 

6.516 

355.536 

I .650.977 

2,006,5 13 

63.407 

$2,069,920 
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Revised 

Budget 

Enterprise Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

Actual (lJnfa\orahle) 

RWl3WeS 
Tuition 

Sales 
Chases for Services 

Interest 
Property Taxes 
Contributions and Donations 

Operating Grants 

Other 

$1.081.553 $951,733 

437.844 4 16.253 

300 297 
44.000 99.791 

613.416 662247 
0 0 

IO5529 100,735 

26.856 31.457 

($129.820) 
(21.591) 

(3) 
55.791 

(I 1.219) 

0 

(4.794) 

4.60 I 

1.369.558 2261.5 Ii (107.045) 

EXpellSeS 
Salaries I .097.093 977.535 124.558 
Fringe Benefits 348.154 299.1 I5 49.039 
Purchased Services 457.219 300.549 156.670 
Materials and Supplies 383.493 323.886 59.607 
Capital Outlq 42.658 14.146 78.5 12 
Other 9.580 8.159 I.29 I 

Torul E.~pen.w.s 2.338267 I .918.590 4 19.677 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 7.445 7.445 0 

Fund Eyui(v End of Yaw $1.750.084 $2.039.632 $289.548 

(continued) 



Nonexpendable Trust Fund 

Variance 

Revised Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable 

RWUlUeS 
Tuition 

Sales 

Charges for Services 

Interest 

Property Taxes 

Contributions and Donations 

Operating Grants 

Other 

Expenses 
Salaries 

Fringe Benefits 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay 

Other 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 

4.000 2.500 1.500 

Total Expenm 4.000 2.500 1.500 

$0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

$0 
0 
0 

3,154 
0 

2.55 I 

0 

0 

$0 
0 
0 

3,754 
0 

2.55 I 
0 
0 

6.305 6.305 

Excess of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenses (4.000) 3.805 7.805 

Operating Transfers In 0 0 0 

Excess of Revenues Over Clkler, 
Expmses und Operating Trmuje-s (4.000) 3,805 7,805 

Fund Equity Beginning of Ycur 64.237 64.237 0 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 0 0 0 

Fund Equity End of Yew $60.237 $68.042 

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements 

$7,805 
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Totals 

(Memorandum Only) 

Variance 

Revised FWXlbk 

Budget Actual (llnfavorable) 

$1.081.553 $951.733 ($ I29.8?0) 

437.844 4 16,253 (21.591) 

300 297 (3) 

44,000 103.545 59.545 

673.476 662.247 (I 1.229) 

0 2.55 I 2.55 I 

105.529 100.735 (4.794) 

26.856 31.457 4.60 I 

3.369.558 X268.818 i 100.740) 

I .097.093 971.535 124.558 

348.254 299.215 49,039 

457.119 300.549 156.670 

383.493 323.886 59.607 

41.658 14.146 28.5 I2 

13.550 10.759 2.79 I 

2.343.267 1.911.090 421.177 

27.29 I 347.728 320.437 

29.600 6.516 (23.084) 

56.891 354.244 297,353 

1.745.985 1.745.985 0 

7.445 7.445 0 

$l.810.321 $2.107.674 $297.353 



Proprietary 

Fund Type 

Enterprise 

Fiduciar) 

Fund Type 

Nonexpendable 
Trllst 

TOtalS 

(Memorandum 

Only) 

S416.550 

95 I.733 
0 

(583.743) 

(972.535) 

(299.2153 

31.457 

(8.159) 

(464.012) 

662.247 

100.735 
6.5 I6 

769.498 

(14.0133 

(I 6,760) 

(23-i) 

(3 I .o IO) 

99.79 I 

374.267 

I .6X9. I93 

$2.063.460 

SO $416.550 

0 95 1,733 

2.551 7.55 I 

0 (583.743) 

0 (973.535) 

0 (299.2 15) 

0 3 I.457 

(2.500) (10.759) 

il (463.961) 

0 662.147 

0 100.735 
0 6.516 

0 769.498 

0 (14.013) 
0 (16.760) 
0 (237) 

0 (3l.010) 

3,754 IO3.545 

3,805 378,072 

64.237 I .75;.430 

$68.042 $~.131,502 

(continued) 

Increuse (Decrease) in Gush und Gush Equiwlenb 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Cash Received from Customers 

Cash Received from Tuition Payments 
Cash Received from Contributions and Donartons 

Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Cash Payments to Employees for Services 
Cash Payments for Employee Benefits 

Cash Received from Other Operating Revenues 

Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses 

h;er Gosh Usedfor (Provided hy) Operaring Acr;ri/ies 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Property Taxes 

Operatins Grants Received 
Operating Transfers In 

JNer Cmh Prorfded hy h’onrirpiral Finunr~ng Acrivirius 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Payments for Capital Acquisitions 

Capital Lease Principal Payments 
Capital Lease Interest Payments 

,Ve\ler Cmh Usedfir Capirol 
and Relored F;nunc;n~ .Acriviricc 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Interest on Investments 

Ner lnrreasr in Cash and Cash Eqeivolenf.~ 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Eynivolenrs End <fl f’un 
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Proprietary 

Fund Type 

Enterprise 

Fiduciar) 

Fund Type 

Nonexpendable 

Trust 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net 

Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities: 

operurirrp lnronrr (LOSSi ($560.5 IX) $3.805 (SSS6.7li) 

.4~;rmn~!nu~~ 

Depreciarion 

Donated Commodities Used During Year 

Interest 

(Increase)lDecrease in Assets: 

Accounts Receivable 

Inw~overnmmtal Receivable 

Inventor Held for Resale 

Matsrials and Supplies Inventory 

Incrrase~(Decrease) in Liabilities: 

Accounts Payablr 

Cunrracts Paqable 

Accrued Wa~zes 

Compensated Absences Payable 

Interwvemmrntal Parable 

X4.946 
75 702 -. ,- 

0 

(2.600) 

657 

7.467 

(4.197) 

0 

0 

(3,754) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

81.946 
lj ,o, 

(Z.754) 

(2.600) 

657 

7.467 
(4.197) 

(3,963) 
Il.792 

(48.744) 

4,072 

z I.874 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

(Z.754) 

(3.963) 
Il.792 

(48.744) 

4.072 

21.87-l 

96.506 92.752 

Reconciliation ofCash and Cash Equivalenrs ofNonexpendable Trusr Fund 10 Balance Sheer: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents-All Fiduciary Funds: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Expendable Trust Fund 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Agcnc) Funds 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Nonexpendable Trust Fund 

See accompanying notes KI tht: general purpose financial statements 

SI 84.438 
(39.49X) 

(76.898) 

$68.042 



Orange City School District 
Notes IO the General Purpose Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, I999 

Note 1 - Description of the School 

The Orange City School District (School District) is a body poliric and corporate established for the purpose 
of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the constitution and laws of the State of Ohio. 

The School District operates under a locally elected five-member Board form ofgovernment. Each member 
is elected to a four year term. The School District provides educational services as mandated by State and/or 
federal agencies. The Board ofEducation controls the School District’s four instructional support facilities 
staffed by 161 classified employees, 225 certified full-time teaching personnel, and 25 administrators who 
provide services to 2,258 students and other community members. 

The School District is located in Pepper Pike, Ohio, Cuyahoga County The enrollment for the School 
District during the 1999 fiscal year was 2,258. The School District operates two elementary schools (K-2) 
and (3-4), one middle school (5-7) and a high school (g-12). 

Reporting Entity 

A reporting entity is composed ofthe primary government. component units and other organizations that are 
included to ensure that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the School 
District consists of all funds. departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the School 
District. For Orange City School District, this includes general operations, food service, recreation and 
related activities of the School District. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the School District is financially accountable. 
The School District is financially accountable for an organization if the School District appoints a voting 
majority of the organization’s governing board and (I) the School District is able to significantly influence 
the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the School District is legally 
entitled to or can otherwise access the organization‘s resources; the School District is legally obligated or 
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the 
organization; or the School District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also 
include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the School District in that the School District approves 
the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. The School District has no component units. 

The School District is associated with two jointly governed organizations, the Lakeshore Northeast Ohio 
Computer Association (LNOCA) and the Ohio Schools’ Council. These organizations are presenred in Note 
9 to the general purpose financial statements. 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the School District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GA%) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles. The School District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 

- l8- 



Orange City School District 
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 199~9 

statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30. 1989, to its proprietav activities provided 

they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant ofthe School District’s 
accounting policies are described below. 

A. Basis Of Prewntation - Fund Accounting 

The School District uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the results of its 

operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management 

by segregating transactions related to certain School District functions or activities. 

A fund is defmed as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and 
other financial resources. together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances. and changes 

therein. which are segregated for the purpose ofcarrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives 
in accordance with special restrictions or limitations. An account group is a financial reporting device 

designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because 
they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. 

For tinancial statement presentation purposes, the various funds of the School District are grouped into the 
following generic fund types under the broad fund categories governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. 

Governmental Fund Types Governmental funds are those through which most governmental 
functions of the School District are financed. The acquisition. use and balances of the School 

District’s expendable financial resources and the related current liabilities (except those accounted 

for in proprietary or fiduciary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The following 

are the School District’s governmental fund types: 

General Fund The general fund is the operating fund of the School District and is used to 

accwnf for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
The general fund balance is available to the School District for any purpose provided it is 

expended or transferred according to the general laws of Ohio. 

SpecialRevenue Funds Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds 
of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are 

legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. 

Debt Service Fund The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of 

resources for, and the payment of, general long-term obligation principal, interest, and 

related costs. 

Capital Projects Funds Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources 
to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those 

financed by proprietav funds and trust funds). 
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Orange City School District 
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, I999 

Proprietary Fund Type Proprietary funds are used to account for the School District’s ongoing 
activities which are similar to those found in the private sector. The following is the School 
District’s proprietary fund type: 

Enterprise Funds Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the Board 
of Education is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 

services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges or where the Board of Education had decided that periodic 
determination of revenues earned. expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for 
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. 

Fiduciary Fund Types Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the School District 
in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and 
other funds. These include expendable trust, nonexpendable trust and agency funds. Expendable 
trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. Nonexpendable 
trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. Agency funds are 
purely custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of results 
of operations. 

Account Groups To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and those 
of general government, and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of a 
general nature. the following account groups are used: 

General FiredAssets Account Group This account group is established to account for all 
fixed assets of the School District. other than those accounted for in the proprietary or trust 
funds. 

General Long-Term Obligafions Account Group This account group is established to 
account for all long-term obligations ofthe School District except those accounted for in the 
proprietary or trust funds. 

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 
All governmental fund types and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial 
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus. only current assets and current liabilities are 
generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statementsofthese funds present increases (i.e., revenues 
and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 
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Orange City School District 
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

All proprietary funds and nonexpendable trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources 

measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation 

of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into 

contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary and nonexpendable trust funds operating 

statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e.. expenses) in net total assets. 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and 

reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for the governmental, expendable trust and agency 

funds. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period when they become both 

measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and 

“available” means collectible within the current tiscal year or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 

liabilities ofthe current fiscal year. The available period for the School District is sixty days after year end. 

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrualbasis.thefollowing revenue sources 

are deemed both measurable and available: interest, tuition, grants and student fees. 

The School District reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when 

a potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current 

period. In the subsequent period, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, the liability for deferred 

revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. Property taxes measurable 

as of June 30, 1999. and delinquent property taxes. whose availability is indeterminable and intended to 

tinance fiscal year 2000 operations. have been recorded as deferred revenue. 

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources 
(expenditures)ratherthanexpenses. Expendituresaregenerallyrecognized intheaccountingperiod in which 

the related fund liability is incurred. if measurable. Allocations of cost. such as depreciation and 

amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. 

The accrual basis ofaccounting is utilized forreporting purposes by the proprietary and nonexpendable trust 

funds. Revenues are recognized when they are earned and become measurable, and expenses are recognized 

when they are incurred, ifmeasurable. There were no unbilled service charges receivable at year end. The 

fair value ofdonated commodities used during the year is reported in the operating statement as an expense 

with a like amount reported as donated commodities revenue. Unused donated commodities are reported as 

deferred revenue. 

C. Budgetary Data 

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions ofthe Ohio Revised Code and entails the preparation of 

budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents prepared are the tax budget, the 

certificate ofestimated resources. and the appropriation resolution, all ofwhich are prepared on the budgetary 

basis ofaccounting. The certificate ofestimated resources and the appropriations resolution are subject to 

amendment throughout the year with the legal restriction that appropriations cannot exceed estimated 

resources. as certified. All funds. other than agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and 



Orange City School District 
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, I999 

appropriated. The primary level of budgetary control is at the object level within each fund and function. 
Any budgetary modifications at this level may only be made by resolution of the Board of Education. 

Tar Budget Prior to January 15, the Superintendent and Treasurer submit to the Board of Education 
a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July I. The budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all funds. Public hearings are 
publicized and conducted to obtain taxpayers’ comments. The express purpose of this budget 
document is to reflect the need for existing (or increased) tax rates. 

By no later than January 20, the Board-adopted budget is tiled with the Cuyahoga County Budget 
Commission for rate determination. 

EstimatedResources Prior to April 1, the Board of Education accepts, by formal resolution, the tax 
rates as determined by the Budget Commission and receives the Commission’s certificate of 
estimated resources which states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to June 30, the School 

District must revise its budget so that total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the 
ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated in the certificate of estimated resources. The revised 
budget then serves as the basis for the appropriation measure. On or about July I. the certificate is 
amended to include any unencumbered cash balances from the preceding year. The certificate may 
be further amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in revenue are identified by 
the School District Treasurer. The amounts reported in the budgetary statement reflect the amounts 
in the final amended cenificate issued during fiscal year 1999. 

Appropriations Upon receipt from the County Auditor of an amended certificate of estimated 
resources based on final assessed values and tax rates or a certificate saying no new certificate is 
necessary, the annual appropriation resolution is enacted by the Board of Education at the fund, 
function, and object level of expenditures, which are the legal levels of budgetary control. Prior to 
the passage of the annual appropriation measure, the Board may pass a temporary appropriation 
measure to meet the ordinary expenses ofthe School District. The appropriation resolution, by fund, 
must be within the estimated resources as certified by the County Budget Commission and the total 
of expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed the appropriation totals at any level of control. 
Any revisions that alter the total of any fund appropriation, or alter total function appropriations 
within a fund, or alter object appropriations within functions, must be approved by the Board of 
Education. The Board may pass supplemental fund appropriations so long as the total appropriations 
by fund do not exceed the amounts set forth in the most recent certificate of estimated resources. 
During the year, several supplemental appropriations were legally enacted; however, none of these 
amendments were significant. The budget figures which appear in the statements of budgetary 
comparisons represent the final appropriation amounts, including all supplemental appropriations. 
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all 
funds, other than agency funds, consistent with statutory provisions. 

Encumbrances As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures on the 
non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to reserve that portion r-f the applicable appropriation and to 
determine and maintain legal compliance. On the GAAP basli, encumbrances outstanding at fiscal 
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year end are reported as a reservation of fund balance for subsequent-year expenditures for 

governmental funds and reported in the notes to the financial statements for proprietary funds. 

Lapsing of Appropriafions At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each 

appropriation reverts to the respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to 
future appropriation. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year 

and are not reappropriated. 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

To improve cash management, cash received by the School District is pooled. Monies for all funds, including 

proprietary funds. are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained through the School 

District’s records. Each fund’s interest in the pool is presented as “equity in pooled cash and cash 
equivalents” on the combined balance sheet. 

During fiscal year 1999> investments were limited to Federal Farm Credit BankNotes, Federal Home Loan 

Bank Notes. Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Notes, Federal National Association Mortgage Notes, 
Student Loans, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, money market fund, and STAROhio, the State 

Treasurer’s Investment Pool. 

Except for nonparticipating investment contracts. investments are reported at fair value which is based on 

quoted market prices. Nonparticipating investment contracts such as repurchase agreements are reported at 

cost. 

STAROhio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office which allows governments within 

the state to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with SEC as an investment 
company. but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2~x7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. 

Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROhio‘s share price which is the price the investment could be 

sold for on June 30, 1999. 

Following Ohio statutes, the Board of Education has, by resolution. specified the funds to receive an 

allocation of interest. Interest revenue credited to the general fund during fiscal year 1999 amounted to 

$717,527. which includes $552,496 assigned from other School District funds. 

For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows and for presentation on the combined balance sheet, 

investments ofthe cash management pool and investments with an original maturity ofthree months or less 

at the time they are purchased by the School District are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with 

an original maturity of more than three months that are not made from the pool are considered to be 

investments. 
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, I999 

E. Prepaid Ifems 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 1999, are recorded as 

prepaid items using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the time 

of the purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in the year in which services are consumed. 

F. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets in the general fund represent cash and cash equivalents whose use is limited by legal 
requirements. Restricted assets include a reserve for budget stabilization. See Note 7 for the calculation of 

the year-end restricted asset balance and the corresponding fund balance reserves. 

G. InventoqJ 

Inventories of governmental funds are stated at cost while inventories of proprietary funds are stated at the 
lower of cost or market. For all funds, cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory in 

governmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost of inventory items is 

recorded as an expenditure in the governmental fund types when purchased. Reported material and supplies 

inventory is equally offset by a fund balance reserve in the governmental funds which indicates that it does 
not constitute available expendable resources even though it is a componentofnet current assets. Inventories 

of proprietary funds consist ofdonated food. purchased food, recreational materials and school supplies held 

for resale and are expensed when used. 

H. Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital 
acquisition and construction costs are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds. and the related assets 

are reported in the general fixed assets account group. Fixed assets utilized in the proprietary funds are 
capitalized in the respective fund. All purchased fixed assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical 

cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their 

fair market values as of the date received. The School District maintains a capitalization threshold of five 

hundred dollars. The School District does not possess any infrastructure. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 

an asset’s life are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful 

lives of fund fixed assets. 
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Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. Depreciation of furniture and 

equipment. vehicles. and improvements other than buildings in the enterprise funds is computed using the 

straight-line method over an estimated useful life that ranges from five to twenty years. 

I. Intergovernmental Revenues 

For governmental funds, intergovernmental revenues, such as entitlements and grants awarded on a 
non-reimbursement basis, are recorded as receivables and revenues when measurable and available. 

Reimbursement type grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are 

incurred. Other than commodities. grants and entitlements for proprietary fund operations are recognized 

as non-operating revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable. 

The School District currently participates in several State and Federal programs, categorized as follows: 

Entitlements 

General Fund 
State Foundation Program 
Special Education Program 
School Bus Purchase Reimbursement 
State Property Tax Relief 

Non-Reimbursable Grants 

Special Revenue Funds 
Auxiliary Services 
Venture Capital 
Education Management Information Systems 
Title VI-B 
Drug Free Schools 
Title I 
Title VI 
Ohio Library Automation 
Preschool Grant 
Eisenhower Math and Science 
Reggio Jennings Grant 
Child Abuse Detection 
interactive Video Distance Learning 
Professional Development 

Capital Projects Fund 
School Net 
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Reimbursable Grants 

General Fund 
Driver Education Reimbursement 

Proprietqv Funds 
National School Lunch Program 
Government Donated Commodities 

Grants and entitlements amounted to approximately eighteen percent of the School District’s governmental 

funds’ operating revenue during the 1999 fiscal year. 

J. CompensatedAbsences 

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive 
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the School District will 
compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. The School District 
records a liability for accumulated unused vacation time when earned for all employees with more than one 
year of service. 

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability includes the employees 
who are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and those the School District has identified as 
probable ofreceiving payment in the future. The amount is based on accumulated sick leave and employees’ 
wage rates at fiscal year end. taking into consideration any limits specified in the School District‘s 
termination policy. The School District records a liability for accumulated unused sick leave for classified, 
certified and administrative employees after five years of service with the School District. 

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount expected to be 
paid using available expendable resources. These amounts are recorded in the account “compensated 
absences payable” in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The 
remainder is reported in the general long-term obligations account group. In proprietary funds, the entire 
amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund liability. 

K. Contributed Capital 

Contributed capital represents resources from other funds, other governments, and private sources provided 
to proprietary funds that are not subject to repayment. These assets are recorded at their fair market value 
on the date donated. Depreciation on those assets acquired or constructed with contributed resources is 
expensed and closed to unreserved retained earnings at year end. 
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L. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations 

ln general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities are reported as obligations of the funds 
regardless of whether they will be liquidated with current resources. However, claims and judgments. 

compensated absences, contractually required pension contributions and special termination benefits are 
reported as a liability in the general long-term obligations account group to the extent that they w,ill not be 

paid with current expendable available financial resources. Payments made more than sixty days after 
year-end are generally considered not to have been paid with current available financial resources. Bonds 

and capital leases are recognized as a liability of the general long-term obligations account group until due 

or until resources have been accumulated in the fund for payment early in the following year. 

Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the 

appropriate proprietary funds. 

Under Ohio law, a debt retirement fund may be created and used for the payments of bond anticipation notes. 
Generally accepted accounting principles requires the reporting ofthe liability in the funds that received the 

proceeds. To comply wjith GAAP reporting requirements. the activity ofthe School District’s debt service 
fund has been split among appropriate funds. Debt service fund resources used to pay both principal and 

interest have also been allocated accordingly. 

M. Interfund Assets and Liabilities 

Receivables and payables resulting from transactions between funds for services provided or goods received 

are classified as “due from other funds” or”due to other funds” on the balance sheet. Short -term interfund 
loans are classified as “interfund receivables” and “interfund payables.” 

N. Interfund Trmsactions 

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Transactions that 

constitute reimbursements to a fund for expendituresiespenses initially made from it that are properly 

applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions 

of expendituresiespenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other 

interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. 

0. Fund Balance Reserves 

The School District resewes those portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for a specific future 

use or which do not represent available expendable resources and therefore are not available for 

appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is 

available for appropriation in future periods. Fund equity reserves have been established for encumbrances, 
inventories of supplies and materials. budget stabilization, property taxes and contributions. 
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The reserve for property taxes recognized as revenue under generally accepted accounting principles but not 
availableforappropriation under State statue. The reserve for budget stabilization represents money required 
to be set-aside by statute to protect against cyclical changes in revenues and expenditures. The reserve for 
contributions signifies the legal restrictions on the use of principal. 

P. Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Q. Memorandum Only - Totals Columns 

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned “Totals-(Memorandum Only)” to 
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present 
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made 
in the aggregation of this data. 

Note 3 - Accountability 

A. Accountability 

Fund balances at June 30. 1999. included the following individual fund deficits: 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Local Professional Development Block Grant 
Title I 

Enterprise Fund: 
Food Service 

$2.212 
6,428 

79,824 

The special revenue fund’s deticit balances resulted from adjustments for accrued liabilities. The General 
Fund provides transfers to cover deficit balances: however, this is done when cash is needed rather than 
when accruals occur. 

The food service enterprise fund concluded fiscal year 1999 with deficit retained earnings. Management is 

aware ofthe deficit and is analyzing the operation to determine the appropriate action to alleviate the deficit. 
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Note 4 - Budgetary Basis of Accounting 

While the School District is reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund 

balance/retained earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). the budgetar) 

basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of (Non-GAAP Basis) 
cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual, All Governmental Fund Types and 

Similar Trust Fund and the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity 

Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual. Proprietary Fund Type and Similar Trust Fund are presented on the 
budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison ofactual results with the budget. The major differences 

between the budget basis and GAAP basis are that: 

I. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when susceptible 
to accrual (GAAP basis). 

2. Expenditures/expenses are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when 

the liability is incurred (GAAP basis). 

3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures/expenses for all funds (budget basis) rather than 

as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund types and as note disclosures in the 

proprietary fund types (GAAP basis). 

4. For proprietary funds. the acquisition and construction of capital assets are reported on the 

operating statement (budget basis) ratherthan as balance sheet transactions (GAAP basis). 

5. Proceeds from and principal payments on bond and revenue anticipation notes are reported 
on the operating statement (budget basis) rather than as balance sheet transactions (GAAP 

basis). 

6. The School District repays short-term note debt from the debt service fund (budget basis) 
as opposed to the fund that received the proceeds (GAAP basis). Debt service fund 

resources used to pay both principal and interest have been allocated accordingly. 
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The following tables summarize the adjustments necessary to reconcile the GAAP basis statements to the 
budgetary basis statements on a fund type basis. 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Governmental Fund Types and Similar Trust Fund 

GAAP Basis 

Special 

RWenlK 
s22.777 

Debt Capital 

Service Proiects 
$4 I.22 1,083 $28281.695 

Expendable 

TNSt 
$ I.729 

Net Adjustment for 
Revenue Accruals 

Proceeds of Notes 

Proceed of Bonds 

Transfers for Debt Repayment 

Advance In 

Net Adjustment for 
Expenditure Accruals 

Principal Retirement 

Inwest and Fiscal 
Chases 

Transfer Out 

Advance Out 

Undeposited Cash 

(I .3 12,892) 

0 

0 

0 

IO,75 I 

364.855 

0 

0 

0 

0 

(4.350) 

3,519 

0 

0 (I 18,167) 

0 347,308 

(9.931) 0 

0 0 

(271,644) 

2.752.631 

19.570.390 

400.000 

0 

0 

(3.102.000) 

0 0 

36.494.369 0 

(29.570.390) 

(747,308) 0 

0 0 

368.873 0 

0 0 

1.204.121 0 

0 0 

0 (820) 

0 0 

GAAP Basis 

Net Adjustment for Revenue Accruals 

Net Adjustment for Expense Accruals 

Capital Outlay 

Depreciation Expense 

Encumbrances 

Budset Basis 

Adjustment for 
Encumbrances 

Budget Basis 

(198.423) (1 1.426) 0 (5.452.004) 0 

S35.503 $4,939 530.799.601 $30.579.356 S909 

Net Income/Excess of Revenues 

Over Expenses and Operating Transfers 

All Proprietary Fund Types and Similar Trust Fund 

Enterprise 

$35 I ,73 I 

(27,427) 

(20,970) 

(14.013) 

84,946 

(23.828) 

$350.439 

Nonexpendable 

Trust 

$3.805 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

$3.805 
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Note 5 - Deposits and Investments 

State statues classify monies held by the School District into three categories 

Active deposits are public deposits necessav to meet current demands on the treasury. Such monies must 
be maintained either as cash in the School District Treasury, in commercialaccounts payable orwithdrauable 

ondemand, includingnegotiableorderofwithdrawal(NOW)accounts.orinmoneymarket depositaccounts. 

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the School District’s Board of Education has identified as not 
required for use within the current two year period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must 

either be evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of 

designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts including, but not limited to, passbook 

accounts. 

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not needed for 

immediate use but which will be needed before the end ofthe current period of designation of depositories. 

Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates ofdeposit maturing not more than one year from the 
date of deposit. or by savings or deposit accounts including passbook accounts. 

Protection of the School District’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit insurance Corporation. by 

eligible securities pledged by the financial institution, as security for repayment by surety company. bonds 

deposited with the Treasurer by the financial institution or by a single collateral pool established by the 

financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution. Interim 
monies may be deposited or invested in the following securities: 

I. United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds. or any other obligation or security issued by 

the United States Treasu~ or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest 

by the United States: 

2. Bonds, notes,debentures.orotherobligationsorsecurities issued byanyfederalgovernment 

agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the Federal National Mortgage 

Association, Federal Home Loan Bank. Federal Farm Credit Bank. Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation. Government National Mortgage Association. and Student Loan 

Marketing Association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal 
government agencies or instrumentalities: 

3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value 

ofthe securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value ofthe 
agreement by at least hvo percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the 

agreement must not exceed thirty days: 

4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio; 
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5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in 
division (1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations. 
provided that investments in securities described in this division are made only through 
eligible institutions; 

6. 

7. 

The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAROhio), and 

Certain banker’s acceptance and commercial paper notes for a period nor to exceed 
one hundred eighty days in an amount not to exceed twenty-five percent of the interim 
monies available for investment at any one time. 

8. Under limited circumstances. corporate debt interests rated in eitherofthe two highest rating 
classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies. 

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives are 
prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling 
are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched 
to a specific obligation or debt of the School District, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will 
be held until maturity. 

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for investments may be 
made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer or. if the securities 
are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation oftransfer from the custodian. 

Cuslt on Hand At fiscal year-end. the School District had $4,350 in undeposited cash on hand which is 
included on the balance sheet of the School District as part of equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents. 

Deposits At fiscal year-end. the carrying amount ofthe School District’s deposits was ($32,566) and the bank 
balance was $622,05 I $200.000 ofthe bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance. $422,05 I 
was uninsured and uncollateralized. Although the securities serving as collateral were held by the pledging 
financial institutions trust department or agent in the School District‘s name and all State statutory 
requirements for the deposit of money had been followed> noncompliance with federal requirements could 
potentially subject the School District to a successful claim by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

Investments The School District’s investments are required to be categorized to give an indication ofthe 
level ofrisk assumed by the School District at year end. Category I includes investments that are insured or 
registered or for which the securities are held by the School District or its agent in the School District’s name. 
Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments which are held by the counter-party’s trust 
department or agent in the School District’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investments which are held by the counter-party, or by its trust department or agent but not in the School 
District’s name. STAROhio and money market funds are unclassified investments since they are not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. 
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CategC%y Carrying Fair 

3 Value V&K 

Commercial Paper $16,S37,747 $16.531.747 S16.531.147 

Federal Farm Credit Bank Notes 949.4 I I 949.41 I 949.4 I I 

Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 6.901.159 6,907. I59 6.907. I59 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company Notes 5.436789 5.436.789 5.436,789 

Federal National Mongage Association Notes 15.635.882 15;635,882 15.635.882 

Money Market Fund 0 15,610.598 15.670.598 

Student Loan Marketing Association Notes 4,999,500 4,999.500 4.999500 

Repurchase Agreements 383.1 I3 383.1 I3 383.1 I3 

STAROhio 0 11,463,24X I I ,463.248 

Total lnvesfments $50.849.604 $77.983.447 $71.983.447 

The classification of cash and cash equivalents, and investments on the combined financial stawments is 

based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9, “Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and 

Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting.” A 

reconciliation between the classifications of cash and investments on the combined financial statements and 

the classification per GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows: 

GASB Statement No. 9 

lnvesrments which are part of a 

cash management pool: 
Commercial Paper 
Federal Farm Credit Bank Notes 

Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 
Federal Home Loan Mortza:e Company Notes 

Federal National Mortgage Association 
Money Market Fund 

Student Loan Marketing Association Notes 
Repurchase Agreements 
STAROhio 

Cash on Hand 

GASB Statement No. 3 

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents/Deposit 

$77,955,23 I 

Investments 

$0 

(16.537.747) 
(949.4 I I ) 

(6.907,159) 

(5.436.789) 
(15.635.882) 
(I 5.670.598) 

(4.999.500) 

(3X3.113) 
(I 1.463.248) 

(4.350) 

($32.566) 

16.537.147 
949.4 I I 

6.907.159 

5.436,X9 
15.635.882 
15.670,598 

4.999.500 
383.1 I3 

Il.463.248 

0 

77.983.447 

Note 6 - Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis while the School District fiscal year runs from 

July through June. First half tax collections are received by the School District in the second half of the 

fiscal year. Second half tax distributions occur in the First half of the following fiscal year. 

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real. public utility and tangible personal property located 

in the School District. Property tax revenue received during calendar year 1999 for real and public utility 

property taxes represents collections of calendar year 1998 taxes. Property tax payments received during 

calendar year 1999fortanfible personal property(otherthanpublic utility property) is forcalendaryear 1999 

taxes. 
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I999 real property taxes are Iwied after April I. 1999. on the assessed value listed as ofJanuar) I. 1999. the 

lien date. Assessed values are established by State law at thirty-five percent of appraised market \*alue. 

PublicutiIit);tan~iblepersonaIpropertycurrentlyisassessedatva~ingpercentagesoftruevalue:pubticutilit)~ 

real property is assessed at thirty-tiw percent oftrue value. 1999 public utility property taxes became a lien 

December 3 I. 1998. are levied afier April I, 1999. and are collected in 2000 with real properly taxes. 

1999 tangible personal property taxes are levied after .April I, 1998. on the value as of December 3 I. 1998. 

Collectionsare made in 1999. Tangible personal property assessments arc twenty-five percent oftrue value. 

The assessed values upon which the fiscal year 1999 faxes were collected are: 

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. I f  paid annually, payment is due December 3 I: 

if paid semi-annually. the first paynent is due December 3 I with the remainder paytble b?; June 20. Under 

certain circumstances. State statute permits alternate payment dates to be established. 

Tangible personal propert!~ taxes paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20. Single county 

taxpayers may pay annually or semi-annually. I f  paid annually. payment is due .April 30; if paid 

semi-annually. the first payment is due April 30. with the remainder payable by September 20. 

TheSchoolDistrict receivespropert?tasesfromCu?ahofaCount~.Thecountvauditorperiodicall~advances 

to the School District its portion ofthe taxes collected. Second-halfreal propercy tax payments collected by 

the County by June 30.1999 are available to iinancc fiscal year 1999 operations. The amount available to be 

ad\,anced can vary based on the date tile tax bills are smt. 

The County Treasurer collects propcr?y tasesun behalfofall taxing districts in thecounty. including Orange 

City School District. The County Auditor periodically remits to the School District its portion of taxes. 

Accrued property taxes receivabler~presentdelinquenttasesautstandinfandreal propeny,tan~iblepersonal 

property and public utility~tases uhich became measurable as ofJune 30. 1999. Although total property tax 

collections for the next fiscal year are measurable. only the amount available as an advance at June 30 is 

intended to finance current year operations. The receivable is therefore offset by a credit todeferred revenue 

for that portion not intended to finance current year operations. The amount available as an advance at June 

30. 1999, was $2.8 13.297. $2.54 I.653 was available to the in the general fund and $171.644 was available 

to the bond retirement fund. 
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Note 7 - Set-Asides 

The School District is required by State statute to annually set aside in the general fund an amount based on 

a statutory formula for the purchase of textbooks and other instructional materials and an equal amount for 

the acquisition and construction of capital improvements. Amounts not spent by year-end or offset by 

similarly restricted resources received during the year must be held in cash at year-end and carried forward 

to be used for the same purposes in future years. The School District is also required to set aside money for 

budget stabilization. 

The following cash basis information describes the change in the year-end set-aside amounts for textbooks, 

capital acquisition, and budget stabilization. Disclosure of this information is required by State statute. 

Set-aside balance carried forward 

Current year set-aside requirement 

Qualifying expenditures made 

Total Restricted Assets 

Budget Textbook/ 

Stabilization Instructional Capital 

Rererve Materials Improvements Totals 

$161,869 $0 $0 $161,869 

224.035 448,070 448.070 1,120.175 

0 (448.070) (448.070) (896,140) 

$385.904 $0 SO 

5385.904 

Amounts of qualifying disbursements presented in the table were limited to those necessary to reduce the 

year-end balance to zero. Although the School District may have had additional qualifying disbursements 

during the year. these extra amounts may not be used to reduce the set-aside requirements of future years. 

and are therefore not presented. 

Note 8 - Receivables 

Receivables at June 30,1999. consisted oftaxes. accounts (rent, billings for user charged services and student 

fees) and intergovernmental grants. All receivables are considered collectible in full due to the ability to 

foreclose for the nonpayment oftaxes. the stable condition of State programs. and the current year guarantee 

of federal funds. 

A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows: 

Intersovemmental Receivables 

General Fund: 

Tuition from various Ohio schools 

Enterprise Funds: 

Food Service Fund: 

Federal and State School Lunch Program 

Recreation Fund: 

Tuition for Summer Programs 

Total Enterprise Funds 

Grand Total 

Amounts 

$1.103.411 

6.927 

329 
7.256 

s I, I IO.661 
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Note 9 -Jointly Governed Organizations 

The Lakeshore Northeast Ohio Computer Association (LNOCA) is a jointly governed organization among 
eleven School Districts. The jointly governed organization was formed for the purpose of applying modem 
technology with the aid of computers and other electronic equipment to administrative and instructional 
functions among member districts. Each of the governments of these schools supports LNOCA based on 
a per pupil charge. Orange City School District contributed $38,496 to LNOCA during fiscal year 1999. 
LNOCA is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of a superintendent or designated representative 
from each participating school district. The degree ofcontrol exercised by any participating school district 
is limited to its representation on the board. Financial information can be obtained by contacting the 
Treasurer at the Cuyahoga County Board of Education, who serves as the fiscal agent, at 5700 West Canal 
Road, Valley View, Ohio 44125. 

The Ohio Schools Council (Council) is ajointly governed organization among seventy School Districts. The 
jointly governed organization was formed to bring quality products and services at the lowest possible cost 
to the member districts. Each district supports the Council by paying an annual fee of $700 and an annual 
participation fee. The Council’s Board consists of seven superintendents ofthe participating districts whose 
term rotates every year. The degree of control exercised by any school district is limited to its representation 
on the Board. 

The School District participates in the Council’s electric purchase program which was implemented during 
fiscal year 1998. This program allows school districts to purchase electricity at reduced rates, if the school 
districts will commit to participating for an eight year period. The participants make monthly payments 
based on estimated usage. Each June these estimated payments are compared to their actual usage for the 
year and any necessary adjustments are made. 

Energy Acquisition Corporation. a non-profit corporation with a self-appointing board, issued $ I I9.I40,000 
in debt to prepurchase eight years of electricity from Cleveland Electric Illuminating (CEI) for the 
participants. The participating school districts are not obligated in any manner for this debt. If a 
participating school district terminates its agreement, the school district is required to repay the savings to 
CEI and CEI will refund the remaining prepayment related to that participant to Energy Acquisition Corp. 
Financial information can be obtained by contacting Joseph Lesak, Executive Director at the Ohio Schools 
Council at 155 Center Road, Bedford. Ohio 44146. 

Note 10 - Fixed Assets 

A summary of the enterprise funds’ fixed assets at June 30, 1999, follows: 

Improvements other than Buildings 
Furniture and Equipment 
Vehicles 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Fixed Assets 

Totals 
$6,63 I 

543,744 
276,150 

(777.871) 

$48.654 
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A summary of the changes in general fixed assets during fiscal year 1999 follows: 

B&“Ce Balance 

Land 

Buildings 

Furniture and 

June 30, 1998 Additions Deletions June 30. 1999 

$7.507.081 $0 $0 $7507.08 I 
13,192,347 1.062.642 0 14254,989 

7,309.397 40 I .624 (45,403) 7.665.618 
Vehicles 2.831.123 186.368 0 3,017.491 

Construction In 
PKlgress 126.720 58.880 (I 85,600) 0 

Total $30.966.668 $ I .709.5 14 ($231,003) $32.445.179 

Note 11 - Risk Management 

The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 

of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. During fiscal year 1999, the 

School District contracted with Nationwide Insurance for property. general and excess liability insurance. 

Nationwide Insurance also covers boiler and machinery, inland marine, audio/visual equipment and musical 

instruments. with a $2,500 deductible. 

Professional liability is protected by Nationwide Insurance with a $1.000.000 single occurrence. $3.000.000 

a_egregate and no deductible. Vehicles are also covered by Nationwide Insurance and have a $250 deductible 

for comprehensive and a $500 deductible for collision. Automobile liability and vehicle liability both have 

a $l,OOO,OOO or $2.000.000 combined single limit of liability. 

Settled claims have never exceeded this commercial coverage and there has been no significant reduction in 

insurance coverage from last year. 

Note 12 - Employee Benefits 

The School District provides life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment insurance to most 

employees through Medical Life Insurance Company sponsored by Medical Mutual of Ohio, in the amount 

of $100,000 for all certified and union exempt employees. $200,000 for all administrators. the treasurer and 

the superintendent. $50,000 for all bus drivers and hourly employees and $50,000 for non-certified support 

staff employees. Non-union. confidential employees receive insurance that is double their salary. not to 

exceed $100.000. 
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The School District has elected to provide employee medical. surgical, prescription drug, dental and vision 
through various companies. These plans provide medical/surgical plans with deductibles ranging from zero 
to $100 single and zero to $200 family. The dental benefits are subject to a $25 single and $50 family 
deductibles, co-pays and maximum benefits as are outlined in the plan. The vision plan has no deductible 
with 100 percent of the reasonable cost of exams covered, a portion of a pair of glasses per year and a 
ponion of the cost of contact lenses. The School District pays various amounts for coverage based on the 
plan chosen and hours worked by each employee. 

B. Compensated Absences 

The criteria for determining vacation and sick leave benefits are derived from negotiated agreements and 
State laws. Classified employees earn twelve to twenty-two days of vacation per year, depending upon 
length of service and hours worked. Teachers do not earn vacation time. Administrators employed to work 
2 10 through 227 days per year earn 20 days of vacation annually. Administrators who earn vacation are paid 
for accumulated unused vacation time upon termination of employment. Teachers, administrators and 
classified employees earn sick leave at the rate ofone and one-fourth days per month. There is no limit as 
to the amount ofsick leave that may be accumulated. Upon retirement. classified employees, administrators 
and certified employees receive payment for one-fourth of the total sick leave accumulation, up to a 
maximum accumulation of 280 days for classified and up to 320 days for administrators and certified 
employees. 

Note 13 - Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

A. School Employees Retirement System 

The Orange City School District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS), 
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS provides retirement and disability 
benefits. annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority 
to establish and amend benefits is provided by Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised Code. SERS issues a 
publicly available. stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and required supple- 
mentary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the School Employees Retirement System, 
45 North Fourth Street. Columbus, Ohio 432153634. 

Plan members are required to contribute 9 percent oftheir annual covered salary and the Orange City School 
District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current School District rate is I4 
percent ofannual covered payroll. A portion of the School District’s contribution is used to fund pension 
obligations with the remainder being used to fund health care benefits; for fiscal year 1999, 7.7 percent of 
annual covered s&r> was the portion used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal year 1998, 9.02 percent 
was used to fund pension obligations. The contribution requirements of plan members and employers are 
established and may be amended, up to a statutory maximum amount, by the SERS’s Retirement Board. The 
Orange City School District’s required contributions for pension obligations to SERS for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 1999, 1998. and 1997 were $388.805, $634.452, and $669,638; respectively; 67.50 
percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for fiscal years 1998 and 1997. $187,183 
representing the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999, is recorded as a liability within the respective funds 
and the general long-term obligations account group. 
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B. State Teachers Retirement System 

The Orange City School District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS). 
a cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system. STRS provides retirement and 
disability benefits. annual cost-of-living adjustments. and death and survivor benefits to members and 
beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS issues a publicI> 
available. stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for STRS. The report may be obtained by writing to the State Teachers Retirement System. 275 
East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, plan members are required to contribute 9.3 percent oftheir annual 

covered salaries. The Orange City School District was required to contribute 14 percent; 6 percent was the 
portion used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal year 1998, the portion to fund pension obligations was 
10.5 percent. Contribution rates are established by STRS, upon recommendation of its consulting actuary. 
not to exceed statutory maximum rates of IO percent for members and 14 percent for employers. The School 
District‘s required contributions for pension obligations to STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999, 
1998, and 1997 were $832.254, $12654.574, and .$1,744,999, respectively; 45.02 percent has been 
contributed for fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for fiscal years 1998 and 1997. $255.249 represents the 
unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999 and is recorded as a liability within the respective funds. 

Note 11 - Postemployment Benefits 

The School District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and their dependents 
through the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), and to retired non-certified employees and their 
dependents through the School Employees Retirement System (SERS). Benefits include hospitalization. 

physicians’ fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. Benefit provisions 
and the obligations to contribute are established by the Systems based on authority granted by State statute. 

Both systems are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

All STRS benefit recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for health care coverage. The State 
Teachers Retirement Board has statutory authority over hov+ much. if any. of the health care costs will be 
absorbed by STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly 

premium. By law. the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds is included in the employer contribution 
rate. currently I4 percent of covered payroll. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. the STRS Board 
allocated employer contributions equal to 8 percent ofcovered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund, an 
increase from 3.5 percent for fiscal year 1998. For the School District, this amount equaled $1,109.672 for 
fiscal year 1999. 

STRS pays health care benefits from the Health Care Reserve Fund. At June 30, 1998 (the latest information 
available) the balance in the Fund was $2,156 million. For the year ended June 30, 1998. net health care 
costs paid by STRS were $219.224.000 and STRS had 91.999 eligible benefit recipients. 
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For SERS. coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more fiscal years of qualifying service 

credit, and to disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on or after August I. 1989. with 

less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion oftheir premium for health care. The portion 

is based on years of service up to a maximum of 75 percent of the premium. 

After the allocation for basic benefits, the remainder ofthe employer‘s 14 percent contribution is allocated 

to providing health care benefits. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. employer contributions to fund 

health care benefits were 6.30 percent ofcovered payroll. an increase from 4.98% for fiscal year 1998 In 

addition, SERS levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to I4 percent ofthe difference between 

a minimum pay and the member’s pay, pro-rated for partial service credit. For fiscal year 1999, the 

minimum pay has been established at $12.400. For the School District, the amount to fund health care 

benefits, including surcharge during the 1999 fiscal year equaled $334.074. 

The surcharge, added to the unallocated portion ofthe I4 percent employer contribution rate. provides for 

maintenance ofthe asset target level for the health care fund. The target level for the health care reserve is 

125 percent ofannual health care expenses. Expenses for health care for the fiscal year ended June 30. 1998. 

(the latest information available). were $1 11,900,575 and the target level was $139.9 million. At June 30. 

1998. SERS had net assets available for payment of health care benefits of $160.3 million. SERS has 

approximately 50.000 participants currently receiving health care benefits. 

Note 15 - Notes Payable 

During fiscal year 1999. the School District issued one-year bond anticipation notes for the purpose of 

capital improvements at various buildings throughout the School District and an energy conservation note. 

The notes are backed by the full faith and credit ofthe School District. A liability for the notes is reflected 

in the building improvement capital projects fund which received the proceeds. The Capital Projects bond 

anticipation notes were sold at a premium of $5.63 I. 

The School District’s note activity. including amounts outstanding and interest rates are as follows: 

Balance Outstanding 
6/30198 Additions Reductions 6/30!99 

Building Improvements 

Capital Projects Fund 

1999 Energy Conservation Notes j.5090 $0 $2,747.000 $0 52.747.000 

1998 Bond Anticipation Notes 3.82% 3,102.000 0 (3,107.000) 0 

1998 Bond Anticipation Notes 3.46% 0 9,400.000 0 9.400.000 

1999 Bond Anticipation Notes 3.44% 0 27.100.000 0 27, I00.000 

Tom/ Kores ~3.102.000 $39247.000 (s3,loz.ooo) $39247.000 
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Note 16 - Long Term Obligations 

Changes in long-term obligations of the School District during fiscal year 1999 were as follows: 

Enterprise Fund 
Obligation: 

Principal 
Outstanding 

6130198 Additions Deductions 

Principal 
Outstandin 

6130199 _ 

Capital Leases $16,760 $0 ($16,760) $0 

General Long-Term 
Obligations: 

General Obligation Bonds 0 29,500,000 0 29.500.000 

Compensated Absences 513,347 0 (76.717) 436.630 

Pension Obligation 204.525 271.196 (204.525) 271,196 

Capital Leases 12.857 0 (8.847) 4.010 

Tolot General 
Lung-Term Obli,qarion.s 730.729 29,77 I, 196 (290.089) 30.21 1.836 

Tom/ Al/ T,pes $747.489 $29.771.196 (S306.849) $30.21 1.836 

The general obligation bonds will be paid from the debt service fund. The new bonds were issued with a 
premium of $70.390. Compensated absences and the pension obligation will be paid from the fund from 
which the employee is paid. 

Capital lease obligations will be paid from the general fund because it utilizes the assets 

The School District’s overall legal debt margin was $3,014,4?0 at June 30. 1999. Principal and interest 
requirements to retire &eneral obligation bonds outstanding at June 30. 1999, are as folkws: 

Fiscal Year 
Endine June 30. 

2000 
200 I 
2002 
2003 
2004 

2005-2009 
2010-2014 
2015.2019 

Principal Interest Total 
$871.779 $777.996 S I .649,775 
865.000 I .3@4,998 2,169.998 
920.000 1274.722 2.194.727 
955.000 1.240.683 2,195,683 
995.000 1.204.392 2.199.392 

3,895.OOO 5.499330 9,394.330 
3.713.221 6.268. I34 9.981.355 
7.425.000 3,646,925 11.071.925 

2020-2023 9.860.000 1.530.250 11.390.250 
Total $29.500.000 $22.747.430 $52.247.430 
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Note 17 - Capitalized Leases 

Capital lease obligations recorded in the enterprise funds and the general long-term obligations account 

group relate to copier equipment which is leased under long-term agreements. Each lease meets the criteria 

of a capital lease as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. I3 “Accounting for 

Leases”. Capital lease payments in the governmental funds have been reclassified and are reflected as debt 

service in the general purpose financial statements for various governmental funds. These expenditures are 

reflected as program/function expenditures on a budgetary basis. The following is a schedule ofthe future 

minimum lease payments required under the capital leases and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments as of June 30, 1999. 

Year 

2000 

GWW~l 

Long-Term 

Obligations 

4,144 

Less: Amount Representing Interest (134) 

Present Value of minimum lease payments $4.0 IO 

The assets being acquired have been capitalized in the general fixed assets account group in the amount of 

$243,928. This amount represents the present value ofthe minimum lease payments at the inception ofeach 

lease. 

Note 18 - Segment Information for Enterprise Funds 

The School District maintains three Enterprise funds to account for the operations offood service. uniform 

school supplies and recreation. The table below reflects in a summarized format the more significant 

financial data relating to the Enterprise Funds ofthe Orange City School District as ofand for the fiscal year 

ended June 30, 1999. 

Operating Revenues 

Depreciation 

Operating Loss 

Operating Grants 

Tax Revenues 

Operating Transfers In 

Net Income (Loss) 

Food 
Service 

$357,305 

5.595 

(75,073) 

75,131 

0 

0 

(74.740) 

Uniform 

School 
Supplies 

$61.154 

0 

(4.367) 

0 

0 

0 

(4,367) 

Recreation Totals 

$984. I?3 $1.402.582 

79.35 I 84,946 

(481.078) (560.5 18) 

74,705 99,836 

681,141 681.141 

6,516 6.5 16 

380,838 351.731 
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Uniform 

Fixed Asset Additions 

Food School 
Se&X Supplies 

$10,600 $0 
Recreation Totals 

$3,413 $14.013 

Net Working Capital WW 28,253 I ,96X.880 1.988233 

Total Assets 47.489 28,253 2.154,652 2230.394 

Total Equity (Deficit) (16,417) 28.253 I .990.042 2.00 I.878 

Encumbrances at June 30, 1999 0 0 23.828 23.828 

Note 19 - Contractual Commitments 

As ofJune 30. 1999, the School District had the following contractual purchase commitments outstanding: 

Contractor 

Albert M Hi&y Company 

Burton Scot Corporation. 

Chagrin Valley Engineering, Inc. 

Dant Clayton Corporation 

Enviro Serve 

Fanning Howey Associates 

Flynn Environmental. Inc 

Graybar Electric Company 

Illuminating Company 

Lampion Companies 

Musco Lighting 

Phillip Beradnelli. Inc. 

SE Blueprint, Inc. 

Snider & Associates. Inc. 

Warren Roofing & Insulating Company 

William Scotsman 

$2.351.819 

480,2 I3 

8.500 

168,755 

3,380 

1.665252 

14,900 

1.000 

15.563 

93.950 

65.072 

6,3 I8 

7. I28 

29.050 

369,500 

8.390 

Total $5.288.790 
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Note 20 - State School Funding Decision 

On March 24, 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain portions of the Ohio 
school funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed the effect of its ruling for one year to allow the Ohio 
General Assembly to design a plan to remedy the perceived defects in the system. Declared unconstitutional 
was the State’s “school foundation program”, which provides significant amounts of monetary support to 
the School District. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the School District received $1.156.085 of 
school foundation support for its general fund. 

Since the Supreme Court ruling. numerous pieces of legislation have been passed by the Ohio General 
Assembly in an attempt to address the issues identified by the Court. The Court of Common Pleas in Perry 
County has reviewed the new laws and, in a decision on February 26, 1999, determined they are not 
sufficiently responsive to the constitutional issues raised under the “thorough and efficient” clause of the 
Ohio Constitution. The State has appealed the decision made by the Court of Common pleas to the Ohio 
Supreme Court. At this time, the Ohio Supreme Court has not rendered an opinion on this issue. The 
decision of the Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has been stayed by the Ohio Supreme Court, and 
as such, school districts are still operating under the laws that the Common Pleas Court declared 
unconstitutional. 

As of the date of these financial statements. the School District is unable to determine what effect, if any, 
this ongoing litigation will have on its future State funding under this program and on its financial operations. 

Note 21 - Interfund Transactions 

Interfund balances at June 30, 1999. consist of the following interfund receivables and payables: 

Fund 
General 
Expendable Trust 

Memorial Trust 

TOid 

Receivable Payable 
$252 $0 

0 252 
$252 $252 

Note 22 - Contingencies 

A. Grants 

The School District receives financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The 
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and 
conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed 
claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the general fund or other applicable funds. 
However, in the opinion ofmanagement, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect 
on the overall financial position of the School District at June 30, 1999. 
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B. Litigntion 

The Orange Ci?: School District is part) to legal proceedings. The School District is of,the opinion that 

ultimate disposltmn ofclaims will not have a material effect. ifany. on the financial condltlon of-the School 

District. 

Note 23 -Year 2000 Issue 

The Year 7000 issue is the result ofpotcntial shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and 

other equipment that may adversely affect the School District’s operations as early as fiscal 1999. 

Orange City Schools has inventoried computer systems and other equipment necessary to operate the School 

District. As ofJune 30. 1999. it is believed that all majorcomputersysterns and major equipment systems are 

compliant with Year 2000. The School District has four school buildings with power, heating and air 

conditioning systems. which have extensive efficiency utilization measures within the systems. The School 

District has obtained assurances from utility services and has tested ma.jor heating. coolins and telephone 

equipment for Year 2000 compliance: it is believed that all services are Year 2000 complinnt. 

The School District usesthc State ofOhio Uniform Accounting System softnarc for its financialrcponinfalld 

the State ofOhio Uniform School Payroll System software for its payroll and employee benefits. The State 

is responsible for updating these systems and has given assurances to all school districts in Ohio using their 

software that it is currently or will he Year 2000 compliant. 

Northnest 0h10 Computer Association. State software development team states. 

“lhe payroll processing software supported with the OWN State Software is compliant with Year 

2000. 

The accountin% softuarc supported with the OECN State Software is compliant with Year 2000. 

Theeducation management inlormations~stem sotiware supported with the OHCN State Software is 

compliant with Year 2000. 

The equipment inventory and vehicle inventory system software supported with the OECN State 

Software will becompliant nith the Year2000. heginningwith March 1999releaseofSAAS V2.1.” 

The State ofOhio distributes a substantial wm ofmonc~ to the School Districts in the form of”l’oundation” 

payments. Further. the State processes a significant amount oflinancial and non-financial information about 

tbr School District through EMIS. The State is responsihlc for upgrading these systems. and has given 

assurances to all school districts in Ohio using their software that it is currently or will be Year 2000 

compliant. 

Propeny tax billing. collection and remittance for the School District are the responsibility of Cuyahoga 

County. l-he County is responsible fw upgrading their software systems and they have given assurances that 

their software systems \\ill br Year 2000 compliant on or before January I. 2000. 

The School District uses several financial institutions for banking. payroll and investment services. We have 

rcceivcd written assurance that these businesses are Year 2000 compliant. 
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The School District uses the services of Medical Mutual and Mutual of Omaha for health. dental and vision 

insurance coverages. The School District has received assurance from these companies that they are Year 

2000 compliant or will be by January 1.2000. 

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and success of related remediation 

efforts will not be fully determinable until the year2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the 
School District is or will be year 2000 ready, and that the School District‘s remediation efforts will be 

successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the School District does business will be year 2000 

ready. 

Note 24 - Subsequent Events 

On July 22, 1999 the District issued school improvement notes in the amount of $7.000.000. at a rate of 

3.64%, with a maturity date of July 20,200O. 

On August 18, 1999. the School District retired $36,500,000 of school improvement notes, 
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General Fund 

The General Fund is the operating fund of the School District and is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds. 
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Schedule of Rewwues, tjrprndirures and Changes 

in Fund Balance Budm /Non-GAAP Basisl ond Acrml 
&erul Fund 

For rhe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, I999 

Revised 
Budget Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

RWellUeS 
T?lXS 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 
Tuition and Fees 
Chargs for Services 
Rent& 
MiSC~ll~ll~OUS 

$22.Sl9.755 $22.575.1 I7 555.362 
3,264.965 4.908.919 1.643.954 

400.000 483.363 83,363 
1,361.263 809,760 (55l.503) 

20.000 39,459 19,459 
30,000 28.482 (1.518) 

4.404 166.959 162.555 

Tom/ Rcvenue~ 27.600.387 29,0 12.059 I.41 1.672 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Rqular: 

Salaries and Wafes 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay New 
Capital Outlay Replacement 

8,855,570 8.735.250 I20.320 
2,347.862 2.347.495 367 

305,373 286.981 18,392 
4 IO.202 358.837 51,365 

49,166 42,842 6324 
43.474 38,458 5.016 

Total Regular 12.01 1.647 Il.809.863 201.784 

Special: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - New 
Capital Outlay - Replacement 

Total Special 

2.444.826 2.405.494 39,332 
724.945 700.654 24.29 I 
841.280 836.722 4.558 

39.70 I 35.204 4.497 
19.035 18.579 456 
2.450 I.320 I.130 

4.072.237 3.997.973 74.264 

Vocational: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Vocational 

Total Instruction 

65.100 64.286 
14.859 14.747 
4.100 2.827 

84.059 81.860 

$I6,167.943 $15.889.696 

814 
II2 

1,273 

2.199 

S278.247 

(continued) 
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Support Services: 
Pupils: 

Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

Sl.382.535 
384,912 

42.602 
28.657 

$1.280374 
380.845 

38,856 
22.332 

$101.961 
4.067 
3,746 
6.225 

Total Pupils 1.838.706 I .72’.707 I 15.999 

Instructional Staff: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fring Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - New 
Capital Outlay - Replacement 

842.850 799.6 19 43.23 I 
268,982 265.736 3.246 

25.340 22.486 2.854 
60.638 55,257 5.38 1 
19.799 19,059 740 
IS.559 13,882 1.677 

Total Instructional Staff 1,233.168 I. 176.039 57,129 

Board of Education: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Other 

9.600 
405 

16.300 
46.750 

263 
13.591 
45.572 

0 
142 

2,709 
I.178 

Total Board of Education 73.055 69.026 4.029 

Administration: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - Neu 
Capital Outlay - Replacement 
Other 

1.136.761 I. 124.472 
42 I.205 409.324 
3 15.368 300.682 

43.593 3S.376 
5.670 3.277 
6.800 6.049 

14.262 13.231 

17.289 
I I.881 
14.686 
8.2 I7 
2,393 

751 
I ,03 I 

Total Administration I .943.659 1.892.41 I 51.248 

Fiscal: 
Salaries and Wage> 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay-New 
Capital Outlay Replacement 
Other 

216,108 216.108 
98. I85 9 I.890 
52.190 23,768 

8.060 5,922 
10.100 10.039 
3,430 j.42 I 

346.630 344.349 

0 
6.295 

28,422 
2,138 

61 
9 

2.281 

Total Fiscal $734.703 $695.497 539.206 

Revised 
Budget Actual 

VZIrltinCe 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(continued) 

49 



Orange City School District 
Schedule o/Revenues, Expendimres and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 
General Fund (conrimed) 

For rhe Fiscal l’eeor Ended June 30. 1999 

Busmess: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay -New 
Capital Outlay - Replacement 
Other 

$158,583 $158,461 $122 
68,489 68,486 2 
73,332 70,720 612 
39,000 28,432 10.568 
12.720 Il.931 789 
5,000 3.141 1.859 
1.850 I.118 732 

Total Business 356,974 342.289 14,685 

Operation and Maintenance of Plant: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - New 
Capital Outlay - Replacement 
Other 

I. 168.400 1.140.533 
428.253 41 1,958 

I. 180.779 I, 102,774 
213,318 391.463 

21,415 
66.494 
60.000 

19.270 
66.048 
33.426 

27,867 
16.295 
78,005 
21.855 

2,145 
446 

26.574 

Total Operation and Maintenance of Plant 3.138.659 2.965.472 173.187 

Pupil Transponation: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - New 
Capital Outlay - Replacement 

1.275.745 1.267.674 
454.258 454.229 
144.582 I IS.623 
143.289 121.353 

19.040 18,728 
142.300 141.485 

8.07 I 
29 

25,959 
21.936 

312 
815 

Total Pupil Transportation X179.214 2.122.092 57.122 

Central: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay -New 
Capital Outlay Replacement 

Total Central 

Total Support Services 

216,550 212.078 4,472 
73.591 67.607 5,984 

171.782 148.250 23,532 
73.713 70.670 3,043 

139,26 I 139.073 188 
67.415 67.123 292 

742.312 704.801 37.51 I 

$12.240.450 $I 1.690.334 $550.1 16 

Revised 
Budget ACtUal 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(continued) 
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Operation of Non-Instructional 
SUViCeS: 

Food Service Operations: 
Fringe Benefits 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Operation ofNon-Instructional 
SWViCtS 

Extracurricular Activities: 
Span Oriented Activities: 

Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 

Total Extracurricular Activities 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds from Salr of Fixed Assets 
Advances In 
Operating Transfers out 

Tad Oher F‘rmncing Sourres (Uws) 

Fund Baiancc Be,yinning qf J’eear 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 

Fund Balancr End o/Ym 

Revised 
Budget Actual 

$21.849 s I.974 $19.875 
10.000 9.666 334 

3 1,849 II.640 

654,650 589.109 
128,446 116,884 

5.400 5.400 

788,496 711.393 

29,22X.738 2X.303.063 

(1.628.351) 708.996 

200 756 
4 I .x00 10.7.51 

(685.001) (685.000) 

(643.001) (673.493) 

(2271,352) 35so3 2.306.855 

6.998.840 6.998.840 0 

122,595 122.595 0 

$4.850.083 $7.156.938 $2.306.855 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

20.209 

65.541 
II.562 

77.103 

925.675 

X337.347 

556 
(31.049) 

I 

(30.492) 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. 

Public School Supporf -This fund accounts for school site sales revenue and expenditures for field trips. 
assemblies, and other activity costs. 

Miscellaneous Grants These funds account for local monies received for the training and purchasing of 
materials to help with students who have special needs in the third and fourth grades. 

Ohio Library Aufomation - This fund accounts for funds received from the State to be used exclusively to 

support computers used in the library for research. 

District Managed Activity This fund accounts for those student activity programs which have student 
participation in the activity but do not have student management of the programs. 

Auxiliary Senices - This fund accounts for funds which provide services and materials to pupils attending 
non-public schools within the School District. 

Community Education - This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures involved in upgrading and 
retraining out-of-school youths and adults for the purpose of improving their skills and knowledge in their 
occupation or planned occupation. 

Local Professional Development Block Grant This fund accounts for monies received to promote 
community involvement and to support activities between the school and the community. 

Children’s Trust Fund - This fund accounts for monies received for in-service training on Child Abuse 
Detection. 

Management Information Systems -This fund accounts for State monies which support the development of 

hardware and software orothercosts associated with the requirements ofthe management information system. 

VentureCapifal-ThisfundaccountsforStatemoniesusedtoinvolve thecommunity withtheSchoolDistrict. 

School Net Professiona[DeveZopment This fund accounts for State monies received for computer training 

for teachers in the District. 

Interactive Video Distance Learning This fund accounts for State monies received for learning and 
technology services. 

Reggio Jennings - This fund accounts for State monies received for the enhancement of classroom settings 
by funding the purchase of various supplies. 

Eisenhower Grant-This fund accounts for federal monies strengthening instruction in science, mathematics, 
modem foreign languages. English, the arts and computer learning. 
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Special Revenue Funds (continued) 

Tide VI-B - This fund accounts for federal monies used to assist schools in the identification of handicapped 
children, development of procedural safeguards, implementation of least restrictive alternative service 
pattems,andprovisionoffulleducationalopportunitiestohandicappedchildrenatthepreschool.elementar~. 
and secondary levels. 

Title I This fund accounts for federal monies used to assist the School District in meeting the special needs 
of educationally deprived children. 

Title VI- This fund accounts for federal revenues which supportthe implementation ofa variety ofprograms 
such as computer education. gifted and talented programs, in-service and staff development. 

Drug Free School Grant This fund accounts for federal revenues which support the implementation of 

programs for drug abuse education and prevention. 

PreschoolDisabili~-Thisfundaccountsformoniesreceivedfortheimprovementandexpansionofservices 

for handicapped children ages three through five years. 
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AEsctr 

Quit) in Pooled Cash and 

Cash Eq”lvalenrs 

Liabilities 

Accounts Pqble 

Accrued Wages and Benefits 

Intergovernmental Payable 

7brol Liobililirs 

Fund Equiq 

Fund Balance: 

Resewed for Encumbrancrs 

Unreserved. Undesignated (Deficit) 

$35.445 $3.131 $1.120 %53.': I 9 $41.371 

$234 $0 $0 $0 $0 
0 0 0 0 19.994 
0 0 0 133 3.847 

234 0 0 133 23.841 

116 0 0 0 II.038 
35.095 3.131 I.120 53.186 6.492 

35.21 I 3.131 1.120 53.1X6 17.530 

135.445 $3.131 $1.120 $53.319 $41.371 
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%l.h% $1.096 $R83 66X5 $16.559 

so $0 $0 $0 $0 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 2.308 0 0 101 

0 3.308 ,I 0 101 

0 0 0 (I 3x 

1.689 ,2.21?, xxi 685 16.420 

1.689 (2.212, X83 685 16.458 

$1.689 S I .096 16883 S685 Slh.559 

,Cil”ti”Wd~ 
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Assets 

Equiv in Pooled Cash and 
Cash Equivalents 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Accrued Wages and Benefits 

Intergovernmental Payable 

TO,“, Liflhililies 

Fund Equit, 

Fund Balance: 
Reserved for Encumbrances 

Unreserved. Undesignated (Dcticit) 

545.265 $7.853 $1.525 s10.051 Sll.516 

so SO so SO SO 
574 0 0 0 55 
I24 0 0 0 513 

698 0 0 0 568 

0 0 0 0 0 
44.567 7.853 1.525 10.05 I 10.94R 

44.567 7.853 1.525 10.051 10.948 

$45.265 %7.X53 $1.525 %10.051 Sl1.516 



$14.387 $10.964 $2.840 $336 $260.035 

SO $0 $0 $0 $234 
I I.540 (1 0 0 32.163 

9.275 0 0 50 17.360 

?O.Rlj 0 0 59 49.757 

0 0 0 0 11.192 

(6.428, 10.964 2.840 277 199,ORh 

l6.42R) 10.964 2.840 217 210.278 

S14.387 $10.964 $2.840 S336 $260.035 



0 



701 0 

,,.?I? 

Sh.ZF 

0 

0 

0 

I/ 

0 

0 

0 

0 

(1 

6.796 







Orange City School District 
Schedule ofRevenues, Expendirures and Changes 

in Fund Balance Budget (No,?-GAAP Basis) and Acruol 

Public School Supparr 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. IYY9 

Revised 

Budyet ACtUal 

VXititlCt- 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

RW.XllWS 

Extracurricular Activities 

Contributions and Donations 

$91.587 $74.940 ($16.647) 
II.500 5.895 (5.605) 

103.087 80.835 (22.252) 

Expenditures 

Current: 
Extracurricular Activities: 

School and Public Service 
Co-Curricular Activities: 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay -New 

67,200 61.895 5.305 

34.479 21.250 13.229 
I I.532 3.910 7.622 

Tom/ Expendirures 113.211 

(10.124) 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Transfers In 1,153 

Fund Balance Beginning of Yeor 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 

Fund Baioncu End q/Year 

(8.97 1) 

41,250 

65 

$32,344 

87.055 

(6.220) 

0 

(6.220) 

4 I.250 

65 

$35.095 

26. I56 

3.904 

(1.153) 

2.75 I 

0 

0 

$2.751 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule ofRwenues. Expend;tures and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budge: (Non-GAAP Bask) ond ACIUUI 

M;scellaneou.~ Grams 
For the F;scol Yeear Ended Junr 30. l99Y 

RtVtVlUt3S 
Intergovernmental 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Inshuctlon: 
Re@x: 

Salaries and Wases 

Fringe Benefits 

Total lnstmction 

Support Services: 

Instructional Staff. 

Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Total Instructional Staff 

Central: 
Purchased Services 

Capital Outlay - Neu’ 

Total Central 

Total Support Services 

Total Expendirurrs 

Excess ofRevenues Over 

(Under) Expendilures 

Fund Baiance Bq;nning o/Year 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 

Fund Balance End of Year 

Revised 

Budget Actual 

$3.500 $3.400 

343 0 

57 0 

400 0 

2.070 1.553 

343 266 
1.500 0 

813 188 

4,726 2.007 

200 160 

900 828 

1,100 988 

5.826 2.995 

6.226 2.995 

(2,726) 405 3.131 

2,726 2,726 0 

0 0 

$0 $3,131 

Variance 

Favorable 

(linfavorable) 

($100) 

343 
77 

400 

517 

77 
1,500 

625 

2.719 

40 

72 

II2 

2.83 I 

3.231 

$3.131 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule o/Revenues, Expendirures and Changes 

in Fund B&me Bud@ (Non-GAAP Basis) and Acruoi 
Ohio Lihraty Auromotion 

For /he Fircal Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Revised 
Budget Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$0 $0 $0 

Expenditures 
Current: 
Support Services: 
Instructional Staff. 
Purchased Services 

Excess of Revenues 

tinder Expenditures 

Fund Balance Beyinning o/Year 

Fund Balunce End of Year 

I.120 0 1.120 

(1.120) 0 I.120 

1.120 1.120 0 

$0 $1.120 $1.120 
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Revised 

Budw Actual 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

RWeIlUeS 
Extracurricular Activities 
Contributions and Donations 

Miscellaneous 

$253.600 $81,161 ($172.439) 
26,500 575 (25.925) 

18.000 13.547 (4,453) 

Torui Revcnucs 298.100 95.283 (202.817) 

Expenditures 

Current: 

Extracurricular Activities: 

Academic and Subject Oriented Activities: 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay-New 

191.600 15,782 175.818 

43.300 4.979 38.321 

32.500 0 32.500 

Total Academic and SubJect Oriented Activities 267.400 20.761 746.639 

Sports Oriented Activities: 

Salaries and Wages 

Fringe Benefits 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

IO.81 I 10.620 I91 

I.793 I.663 130 

55.757 55.623 I34 

64.837 64.462 315 

Total Sports Oriented Activities 133.198 

400.598 

132.368 

153.329 

830 

247.469 

(I 02.498) (57.846) 44.652 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Transfers In 

Operating Transfers Out 

99.000 85.000 ( 14,000) 

(7.000) 0 7.000 

Tom/ Other Financing Sourcus fUsesi 92.000 85,000 (7.000) 

(10.498) 

25.966 

27. I54 37,652 

25,966 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 199 199 

0 

0 

Fund Bolancr End of t’mr $15.667 $53.319 $31.652 



Orange City School District 

Schedule of Revenues, Expendirures and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Bud@ /Non-GAAP Bas;s) and Acrual 

A uxiliay Services 

For rhe Fkcui Year Ended June 30, I999 

Revised 

Budget Actual 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Tom/ Revenues 

Expenditures 

Current: 
Operation ofNon-Instructional 

S.TVlCS 
Community Services: 

Salaries and Wages 
Fring Benefits 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay -New 

Tom/ Expendirures 

Exce.~s of Revenues 

Under Expendirures 

Fund Balance Beginning of Yea? 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 

Fund Balance End of Ymr 

$235,888 $235,888 SO 
1.876 I .876 0 

237.764 237,764 0 

137,605 I IS.554 19.05 I 

36,985 30,694 6,29 I 

44.093 43.753 340 

44.862 40,746 4,116 

13.743 13,208 535 

277,288 246.955 30.333 

(39,524) 

36,787 

2,737 

$0 

(9.191) 

36,787 

2.737 

30,333 

0 

” 

$30.333 $30,333 
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Revised 

Budget 

$0 

Actual 

$0 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$0 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Operation ofNon-Instructional Services: 

Community Services: 

Marerials and Supplies 

Excess ofRrvenuer 
tinder Expcndirures 

Other Financing Uses 
Operating Transfers out 

Excess ofRrvenue.s 
Under Expwdi/urm and 
Orher Ffnuncing lAes 

1.689 0 I.689 

(1.689) 0 I .689 

(6.5 16) (6.516) 0 

(8,205) (6,516) 1.689 

$0 $1.689 $1.689 
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RWl3lUeS 
Intergovernmental 

Expenditures 
current: 

Support Services: 
Instructional Staff: 

Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 

Orange City School District 
Schedule of Revenues. Expendirures and Changes 

in Fund Bolonce Budget /Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 
Local Pr@ssionol Developmenr Block Gram 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1999 

Revised 
Budget Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues 
Under Expenditures 

Fund Balance Be@nning of Year 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 

Fund Balance End of Year 

$17.21? $17.212 $0 

16.137 
1,579 

8.056 

16,137 0 
1.579 0 
6.960 1.096 

25.772 24.676 1.096 

(8.560) 

8,560 

0 

$0 

(7.464) 

8.560 

n 

1.096 

0 

0 

$ I.096 $1.096 
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ACIUZll 

Variance 

FaVOrable 

(Unfavorabie~ 

$883 $883 so 

205 0 205 
45 0 45 

653 0 633 

883 0 883 

0 883 883 

0 0 0 

$0 $883 $883 



Orange City School District 

Schedule of Revenues, Expendirurm and Changes 
in Fund Baionre - Budget (Non-GAAP Basisi andAr/ual 

hlmagemenr lnfornrurion ~vstems 
For the Fiscal Year EndedJune 30, 1999 

Revised 

Budget ACtUal 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$6.223 $6.723 SO 

Expenditures 

Current: 
Support Services: 

Central: 
Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay - Replacement 

Total Expendirures 

3,919 3,648 271 
3.561 3.148 413 

7.480 6.796 684 

Excess of Revenues 
Under Lxpendirures 

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 

Fund Bulance End of Year 

(1.257) (573) 684 

1,258 1,258 0 

$1 $685 $684 
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Revised 

Variance 

Favorable 

Budzet ACtUll (Unfavorable) 

525.000 $?5.000 $0 

6.450 3.075 3,575 

I.061 497 564 

20.958 8.761 12.197 

1.939 1.554 385 

30.408 l3.887 16.571 

(5.408) 

4.473 

935 

SO 

11,113 

4.413 

935 

$16.511 $16.521 

16.521 

0 

0 



Revised 

Budget ACtUal 

VXlallCe 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Sll.244 $22.797 %I I.553 

Expenditures 

Current: 

hlSt!-UCtlOll 
Regular: 

Capital Outlay New 7.001 4.385 2.616 

7.00 I 4.385 2.616 

suppon Services: 
Instructional Staff 

Salaries and Wages 

Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 

Marerials and Supplies 

12.489 3.853 

2.137 636 

2.043 I.876 

644 0 

8.636 

I.501 

167 
644 

Total Instructional Staff 17.31; 6.365 IO.948 

Central: 

Salaries and Wages 

Fritqe Benefits 
Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay-New 

17.905 7.054 IO.851 

2.8 I5 I.158 1.657 

249 0 249 

6.936 I.396 5.540 

IO.253 8.402 I.851 

Toral Central 38.158 20.I48 

55.471 

62.472 

18.010 

24.375 

28.760 

3 I.096 

33.712 

45.265 

Fund Balance Bqinning o/ k’c’eur 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 

Fwd Balance End qf l’wr 

(5 1.228) (5.963) 

49.179 49.179 0 

7.049 3.049 ” 

SO $45.265 S45.265 



Revised 

Budget Actual 

VXlZlCe 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Rqular: 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Total Instruction 

Support Servicer: 

Central: 

Purchased Services 

$7.853 $7.853 $0 

2.500 0 2.500 
781 0 781 

3.281 0 3,181 

4.572 0 4.572 

7.853 0 7.853 

0 

0 

$0 

7.853 7.853 

0 0 

$7.853 $7.853 
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Orange City School District 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance Budget Mm-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Rqgio Jennings 
For the F;scsral l&x- Ended June 30. I999 

Revised 

Budget Actual 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$3.000 $3.000 $0 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular: 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay-New 

I .450 845 605 

I.586 1,166 420 

I.149 649 500 

4.185 2.660 1.525 

(1.185) 340 1.525 

I.185 I.185 0 

Fund Balance End of Year $0 $1.525 $1.525 
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Revised 

Variance 

fFavorable 

Budset ACtUal (Ilnfavorable) 

916.712 S16.712 SO 

Expenditures 

CUF3lt: 
Instruclion: 

RegUlX: 
Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capilal Outlay - New 

5.500 

777 

500 

0 

0 

0 

5,500 

777 

500 

Total lnStNctlOn 6,777 0 6.777 

Support services: 

lnsxucrional Staff 

Salaries and Wages 

f;rinse Benefits 

5.699 

901 

6.600 

5.547 

901 

152 
0 

Total Support Services 6.448 152 

Opcrarion of Non-lnsuuctional 

Services: 
Community Services: 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplirs 

Capital Ourlay Neu 

940 21; 777 
I.516 0 I.516 

879 0 X79 

?~otal Operation ofNon-Instructional 

Sen,iccs 213 

6.66 I 

3,122 

10.051 

0 

0 

10.051 

I) 

IO.051 

0 

F,md Buioncc End of Year SO $10.051 S10.051 



Orange City School District 
Schedule of Revenues, Expendrrures and Chan,qes 

in Fund Balance - Budget OWm-G&P Basis) and Actual 
Title VI-B 

For the Fisca/ Year Ended June 30. I9Y9 

Revised 

Budget Actual 

Variatlce 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

RW.?llUlS 
Intergovernmental $78.376 $78.376 $0 

Expenditures 
current: 

Instruction: 

Special Instruction: 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay -New 

69 

276 

0 

Total Instruction 

554 485 

4.482 4,206 

15.464 15.464 

20.500 20.155 345 

Support Services: 

Pupils: 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay - New 

Total Pupils 

3.873 3.852 

11.933 4.490 

14.270 14.270 

30.076 22.6 12 

21 
7.443 

0 

7.464 

Administration: 

Salaries and Wages 

Fringe Benefits 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay - New 

24.2 I9 2 I .674 2.545 
7,406 6.254 I.152 

75 75 0 

I .OO? 992 IO 

561 561 0 

Total Administration 33,263 29.556 3.707 

Total Support Services 

Tooral Expendirures 

Excess ofRevenues Over 
(Under) Expendirures 

Fund Balance Beginning ojYeor 

Fund Balance End of Year 

63.339 

83.839 

52.168 I I.171 

72.323 II.516 

(5.463) 6.053 I I.516 

5.463 5.463 

$0 $11.516 

0 

$11,516 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule of Revenues. Expend;rures and Changes 

in Fund Baiance - Bud@ Mm-GAAP Basis) and Aclziol 

T;rle I 
For rhr F;.wa/ l’ccur Ended ./UIIC 30. I Y Y Y 

Expenditures 

Current: 
Instruction: 

Special: 

Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 

Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Instruction 

support serwces: 

Administration: 

Purchased Serwccs 

Other Financing Uses 
Advances Out 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriared 

Fund Boloncc End ofl’eor 

Revised 

Budget Actual 

S 120.946 $109.215 ($I I.7313 

I 17,693 91.768 

22.4 I6 16,974 
375 356 
980 615 

141.464 I 15,773 

VariXKe 

Favorable 

(Unfavorablr) 

19.925 

5.442 

I9 

305 

25.691 

425 0 415 

141.889 I 15.773 26.1 16 

(20.943) (6,558) 14.385 

(9.93 I ) (9.93 I) 0 

(30.874) (16.489) 14.385 

30.093 30,093 0 

783 783 0 

$2 $14.387 S14.385 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule of Revenues. Lrpend;rures and Changes 

in Fund Bolonce Bud@ INon-GAAP Basisj and Acruol 
T/r/e Vi 

For the Fkcal l’eur Ended June 30. IY99 

Revised 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

RWetttKS 
Intergovernmental $13.158 $10.668 ($2.490) 

Expenditures 
Current: 
Support Services: 
Pupils: 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

1.261 
580 

Total Pupils I.841 

686 
200 

886 

575 
380 

955 

Instructional Staff 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

7.152 0 7.752 
3,764 I .948 I.816 

Total Instructional Staff I I.516 1.948 9.568 

Total Suppon Services 13.357 2.834 10.523 

Operation ofNon-Instructional 
Services: 
Community Services: 

Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

520 
5.883 

520 
2.952 

0 

2.93 I 

Total Operation of 
Non-Instructional Services 6.403 3.472 2.93 I 

Torol i5xpendimre.s 

Excess of Revenues 
Over (Under) Erpenditure.~ 

Fund Balance Bqkning <f t’ear 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 

Fund Balance End of Year 

19.760 6,306 13,454 

(6,602) 10.964 

4,976 

I.626 

80 

4,362 

4,976 

1.626 

$10.964 

0 

” 

$10,964 
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Revised 
Budfet Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Expenditures 
CU~enl: 

Support Services: 
Pupils: 

Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Pupils 

Instructional StafF 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Instructional Staff 

Central: 
Purchased Services 

$14.415 $11.507 ($2.908) 

10.000 
2.414 

12.414 

10.146 10.146 
1.848 1.848 

I I.994 1 I.994 

?.OOO 

26.408 

( I 1,993) 

Il.993 

RO 

5.571 
2.219 

7.790 

876 

20.660 

4.429 
195 

4.624 

I.124 

5.748 

(9.153) 

Il.993 

$2.840 

2.840 

” 

$1.840 
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Orange City School District 
Sched,,le of Revenues, Expxpendirures and Chongcs 

in Fund Balance - Budge1 (Non-GAAP Basis) and Aclual 

Preschool Disahili~ 

For rhe Fi.mzl l&r Ended June 30. 1999 

Revised 
Budset ACWll 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Intergovernmental 

Expenditures 
Current: 
Instruction: 
Special: 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay-New 

Total Instruction 

Support Services: 
pupils: 

Salaries and Wages 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Support Services 

Tom/ Expend;reres 

Excess o/Revmue.~ 

Under Expmdirures 

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance End of Year 

$14,703 $14.703 SO 

300 300 

2,803 2,702 

6.699 6.699 

9.802 9,701 

I.200 1,155 
1,743 I.743 
4.000 3.810 

6,943 6.708 

16.745 16.409 

(2.042) ( 1.706) 

2.042 2.042 

$0 $336 

0 

IO1 
0 

IO1 

45 

0 
190 

235 

336 

336 

0 

$336 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule o/Rcvcnues. E~pwdirures and 

Chonp in Fund Bolunccs Budjy (Non-tiAAP Basisi andA<~ruul 
A // Speriol Rwenuc Fend.t 

For rhe F;.swI J’ear Ended June 30. / 999 

Revised 
Budget ACtUal 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

RWellUeS 

lnterswemmental 

hlterert 

Extracurricular Activities 
Contributions and Donations 
Miscellaneous 

$569.1 13 $563.437 (55.676) 
I.876 I .X76 

345,187 156.101 (189.08:) 
38,000 6.470 (3 1.530) 
18,000 13.547 (4.453) 

Torai Rcven~re.s 972. I76 74 I ,43 I (230.745) 

Expenditures 
current: 

llFJNCtl0”: 

Rquiar: 
Salaries and Wages 
Frinsr Benefits 
Purchasrd Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - New 

Total Repular 

343 0 343 
57 0 57 

9.450 845 8.605 
3,144 I.166 I.978 
8.650 5.034 j.616 

2 1.644 7.045 14,599 

Special: 
Salaries and Wages 
Friry Ben&s 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - New 

Total Special 

Total Instruction 

I 17.693 97,768 19.925 
22.4 I6 16.974 5.442 

IX!9 I.141 88 
8.265 7.583 682 

22.163 22.163 0 

171.766 145.679 26.137 

193.410 152.674 40,736 

Support Srrvices: 
Pupils: 

Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay-New 

I.405 I.155 250 
45 0 4s 

16.877 I 1.851 5.025 
19.560 10.719 8.84 I 
14.270 14.770 0 

Total Pupils 57.157 37.996 14.161 

lnstwcrional Staff 
Salaries and Wares 
Frinyz Benefits c 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Instructional Staff 

41.845 30.165 
6.01 I 3,879 

51.575 27.743 
9.008 5.538 

$109.449 $67.325 

12.680 
2.142 

23,832 
3,470 

$42.124 
(contmued, 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule of Revenues, Exppmdirares and 

Changes in Fund Balances Budge/ (Non-GAAP Bask) and Actual 
AN Special Revenue Funds /conrimrrdl 

For rhe Fiscscal Year Ended June 30. lYY9 

Revised 
Budset ACtUal 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Administration: 
Salaries and Waees 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay -New 

Total Administration 

Central: 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Be&its 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - New 

Total Central 

Total Support Servxes 

Operation of Non-Instructional 
Services: 
Community Services: 

Salaries and Wases 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay-New 

Total Operation of Non-Instructional 
Services: 

Extracurricular Activities: 
Academic and Subject Oriented 
Activities: 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay-New 

Total Academic and Subject 
Oriented Actwitirs 

$24.2 19 $2 I .674 $2.545 
7.406 6.254 I.152 

500 75 425 
1,002 992 IO 

561 561 0 

33.688 29.556 4.132 

17,905 7,054 10,851 
2.815 I.158 1,657 
7.02 I I.036 5,985 

10.855 5,044 5.811 
14.714 12.378 2.336 

53.310 26.670 26,640 

248.604 161.547 87,057 

137.605 I IS.554 19.05 i 
36.985 30.694 6.29 I 
45,553 44,486 1,067 
53,950 43,698 10,252 
14.622 13.208 I.414 

288.715 250.640 38.075 

191.600 
43.300 
32.500 

S?67.400 $20.761 

15.782 
4.979 

175,818 
38.321 
31.500 

$246.639 
(contmued) 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule qfRevcn,,es, Ex,,endrrms and 

Changes in Fund Buioncc.s Budger (Non-GA.4 P Bos;si and Arrual 
.4// ,S,min/ Revenue Fund.s (ronfinwd) 

For rhr F;.xo/ l’eear Ended June 30 1999 

Sports Oriented Activities: 
Salaries and Wasrs 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Sports Oriented Activities 

School and Public Servxe 
Co-Curricular Activities: 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Capital Outlay - New 

Total School and Public Service 
Co-Curricular Acriviries 

Total Extracurricular Activities 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Advances Out 
Operatins Transfers In 
Operatin: Transfers Out 

Revised 
Budzet 

$10.811 $ IO.620 
1.793 1.663 

55.757 55.673 
64.837 64.462 

133.198 132.368 

67,200 61.895 5.305 
34.479 21.250 13.229 
I IS32 3.910 7.622 

113.211 87.055 

513.809 240. I84 

1.244.538 805.045 

(272.362) 

(9.93 I) 
100.153 
(13.516) 

76.706 

(195.656) 4,939 

235.276 235.276 

8.394 8.394 

S48.014 S248.609 

(63.614) 

(9.931) 
85.000 
(6.516) 

0 
(15.153) 

7.000 

68.553 (8.153) 

$191 
130 
I34 
375 

830 

26. I56 

773,625 

439.49; 

208.748 

200.595 

0 

0 

$200.595 



Debt Service Fund Debt Service Fund 

The Debt Service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for. and the payment of. general Ions-term The Debt Service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for. and the payment of. general Ions-term 

debt principal and interest. debt principal and interest. 

Since there is only one debt service fund and the level of budgetary control is no greater than that presented Since there is only one debt service fund and the level of budgetary control is no greater than that presented 

in the combined financial statements, no additional financial statements are presented here. in the combined financial statements, no additional financial statements are presented here. 
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Capital Projects Funds 

The Capital Projects funds are used to account for financial resources to he used for the acquisition 01 

construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). 

Permanent Improvements -This fund accounts for all transactions related to the acquiring. constructing. OI 
improving of various permanent improvements. 

Building Improvements -This fund accounts for revenues to be used for various capital improvements within 

the School District. 

SchooINel- This fund accounts for State monies used to obtain computers and related educational technology 
equipment and/or the necessary infrastructure for educational technology. 

Telecommunily - This fund accounts for grant monies used for consultation and teacher reimbursement for 
secondary education developement using telecommunication. 

85 - 



ASS& 

Equity in Pooled Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Contracts Payable 

Accrued Interest Payable 

Notes Payable 

Energy Conservation Loan Payable 

Fund Equity 

Fund Balance: 

Resewed for Encumbrances 

Unreserved. Undesignated 

Tom/ Liabilities and Fund Equih 

Orange City School District 

Combiniq Balonce Sheer 

A// Caprol Projects Funds 

.hr 3n. 1999 

$63.585 $66.354.340 S45.015 s125 $66.463.065 

so 

0 

0 

0 

” 

0 4.935.57s 

63.585 20.563.137 

63.585 25.498.715 

S63.585 $66.354.340 

Building 

hnprovements 

$187.134 

329.292 

1.092.199 

36.500,OOO 

2.747.000 

40.855.625 

School Net 

SO 

0 

0 

0 

0 

II 

0 

45.015 

45.015 

$45.015 

SO 

0 

0 

0 

0 40355.625 

0 4.935.578 

125 20.671.862 

125 25.607.440 

$125 1666.463.065 

l~“lals 

$187.134 

329.292 

1.092.199 

36.500.000 

2.747.000 
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Y37.745 

0 

207.745 

(198.205, 

1.523.989 23.682 2.875 I.758291 

1.?04.121 0 0 1.x4.121 

2.728.1 IO 23.682 2.875 2.962.412 

CO81.568) 41.014 (2.875) C241.634) 

29.570.390 0 0 39.s70.390 

5.63 I 0 0 5.631 

747.308 0 0 947.308 

30.323.329 0 0 30.5?3.3?0 



Orange City School District 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Shmws 

in Fund Balance Budget INon-GA4P Basis) and,4cluu/ 
Permar1cnt Improvements 

For the Fiscal lb- Ended June 30. 199Y 

Revised 
Budget Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$10.000 $9.540 ($460) 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Capital Outlay: 
Building Acquisition and ConstruCtiOn: 

Capital Outlay -New 398.121 334.465 63.656 

Excess of Revenues 
Under Expenditures (388.121) (324.925) 63.196 

Other Financing Sources 
Operating Transfers In 

Excess of Revenues and Other 
Financinp Sources Under 
Expendirures 

Fund Balancr Beginning qf 1Par 

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 

Fund Balance End of l2ar 

200.000 200.000 0 

(188,121) ( 124.925) 63.196 

153.069 153.069 0 

35,441 35.441 0 

$389 $63.585 $63.196 
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Kevised 

Budget Actual 

Revenues 

lntcrest $1.500 $514.542 

Contributions and Donations 130.3OO 130.3OO 

Miscellaneous 0 1.700 

TO,“, Revenues 131.800 646.542 

Expenditure* 

CWE"t: 

Non-lnsructional Services: 

Community Services: 

Capital Outlay -New 186.268 165.573 

Capital Outla): 

Site improvement Services: 

Capital Outlay -New 4.547.743 57.576 

Architecture and Engineering Service: 

I’urchascd Services 2.108.601 1.974.699 

Educarional Specification Dwelopment Service: 

I’urchascd Services 106.000 103.1?9 

Build&p Acquisitmn and Contrucrion Services: 

Cxpiml Outlay - Neu 15303.775 2.351.819 

Building Improvement Scrwces: 

Capital Outlay - Krplacrmrnr 11.644.728 1.768.700 

Other Facilities Acquisition 

and Conctruct~~n Services: 

Capita, Ourlay - Nra 3.400.399 58.904 

l~olal Capital Outla) 37.111.246 6.3 14.827 

Total Expenditures 37.297.5 14 6.480.400 

EYCEJS "/He"enues 

I;ndtv Erpe,,drrures (37.165714) (5.x33.858) 

Other Financing Sources 

Procesds Sale of Noles 36.5OO.OOO 36.500.000 

.kcrss o/Rewnaes and Orhw 

Fin‘mo"g Sources over 

,l ,'nder, trpendirurer (665.714) 30.666.142 

Fund Baiancr Brpinnin~ o/ tkor 95.498 95.498 

Prior Year Fncumhrancrs Appropriaicd 570.306 570.306 

Fund Bnlonce End o, )ear 590 $3 1.33 1.946 

Variance 

Favorabir 

(Ilnfawrablr) 

$5 13.042 
0 

I.700 

514.742 

20.695 

4.490.167 

133.902 

2.871 

12.951.956 

9.876.02X 

3.34 I.495 

30.796.419 

30.817.114 

31.331.856 

31.331.856 

0 

0 

S3 1.33 I.856 



Revised 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

RWt?WU3 
Intergovernmental 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular: 

Salaries and Wages 

Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Capital Outlay-New 

$64,696 $64,696 $0 

2.100 350 I.750 
515 59 456 

444 0 444 
4,539 2,948 I.591 

6 1,099 20,325 40.774 

68.697 23.682 45.015 

(4.001) 41.014 45,015 

4.001 4.001 0 

$0 $45.015 $45.015 
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Expenditures 

Current: 

Support Services: 

Central: 

Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Revised 

Rudger 

$0 

1.724 1.658 66 

1.276 1.217 59 

3.000 

(3.000) 

3.000 

$0 

ACtId 

$0 

2.875 

(2.875) 

3.000 

$125 

VWlZXlCe 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

WI 

125 

125 

0 

$125 



suppon Servicer: 

cen,ra,: 
Purchased Servicer 
Materials and Supplier 

Tmal Suppon Scnices 

36.5”“.““0 36.5”“.““” 
X”.““” 2”“.““” 



Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to 

private business enterprises xvhere the intent ofthe Board of Education is that the costs (espcnses. including 

depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis he financed or 

recovered primarily through user charges or where the Board of Education had decided that periodic 

determination of revenues earned. expenses incurred. and/or net income is appropriate Ihr capital 

maintenance. public policy. management control. accountability or other purposes 

FoudService - This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food service operations ofthe 

School District. 

CInifDrnt Sc/ruo/Supp/irs - This fund accounts for the purchase and sale of school supplies for use in the 

School District. Profits derived from such sales are used for school purposes or activities connected with the 

school. 

Recreafion - This fund accounts for recreation receipts and other revenues from continuing education classes 

and all costs associated with these activities. 

93 - 



Orange City School District 

Combining Balmce Shec? 

All Enrerprise Fmdr 
Junr 30, 1999 

AWZLT 

Current Assets 

Equity in Pooled Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 

Receivables: 

T&XS 

ACC”U”tS 

In~ergovemmen~al 

henmy Held For Resale 

Materials and Supplies 

Inventory 

Non-Current Assets 

Fixed Assets (Net of 

Accumulated Depreciation) 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Contracts Payable 

Accrued Wags and Benefilr 

Intergovernmental Payable 

Deferred Revenue 

Food Service 

Uniform 

School 

Supplies 

$5.748 $7.983 

0 0 

3,394 0 

6,927 0 

5.592 20.270 

965 0 

22.626 28,253 

24,863 0 

x47.489 $28.253 

$0 $0 

0 0 

4,929 0 

21.412 0 

5.185 0 

31.526 0 

$2.049.729 $2.063.460 

74,943 74,943 

401 3,795 

329 7.256 

0 25.862 

5.459 6.424 

2.130.861 2.181.740 

23.791 48,654 

$2.154.652 $2.230.394 

$13.063 $13,063 

I.492 I.492 

62.370 67,299 

85.056 106,468 

” 5.185 

161.981 193.507 

Totals 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Compensaed Absences Payable 

Tom/ Liobiiiries 

Fund Equity 

Contributed Capital: 

Capital Contributed from 
Governmental Funds 

32.380 0 2,629 35.009 

63.906 0 164.610 228.516 

63.407 0 0 63.407 

Retained Eaminps: 

Unreserved (Deficit) (79.824) 28.253 1.990.042 I .938.47 I 

(I’ Al71 28.253 I .990.042 2.001.878 

$47,489 $28,253 $2.154.652 $2.230.394 
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Uniform 
School 

Supplies Recreation Food Serwce 

Operating Revenues 
Tuition 
Sales 
Other 

SO 

357.305 
$0 

61.154 
0 

$951.811 
558 

3 I.457 

984.123 

8951.811 
419.017 

3 I.457 

1.402.582 

Operating Expewzs 
Salaries 
Fringe Benefits 
Purchased Services 
Materials and Supplies 
cost of Sales 
Depreciation 
Other 

169.188 0 749.674 918.862 
85,782 0 246.993 332,775 

2.662 0 268.015 270.677 
0 0 112.909 112.909 

169.151 59,970 0 229.121 
5.595 0 19.351 84,946 

0 5.55 I 8.259 13.810 

T”m, Opmting Expmws 432.378 65.52 I I .465.20 I 1.963.lOO 

Oprrari,!g Loss (75.073) (4.367) (481.078) (560.5 181 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Federal Donated Commodities 
herest 
Property Taxes 
Operating Grants 
herest and Fiscal Charges 

Operating Transfers In 

25.202 
0 
0 

25.131 
0 

50.333 

(24.740) 

0 

(24.740) 

0 0 25.202 
0 99.791 99.79 I 
0 681.141 68l.IJI 
0 74,705 99.836 
0 (237) (237) 

0 

(4,367) 

0 

(4.367) 

855.400 

374.322 

6.516 

380.838 

905.733 

345.215 

6.516 

35 I .73 I 

(55.084) 32.620 1.609.204 1.586.740 

(79.824) 28.253 1.990.042 1.938.471 

Conrrihued Capiral Beginning 
and End of Year 63.407 0 0 63.407 

Tao, Fund ,De,irir, Equir\; End of Year ($16.417) $28.253 % I .990.042 $2.001.878 
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Orange C&v School District 

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenses and Chanp 
in Fund Eyuir) Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Food Service 

For rhe Fiscal I’mear EndedJune 30. 1999 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revised 

Budget ACtUal 

RWHlWS 

Sales 
Operating Grants 

Total Revenue.~ 

Expenses 

Salaries: 

Food Service Operations 

Fringe Benefits: 

Food Service Operations 

Purchased Services: 

Food Service Operations 

Materials and Supplies: 

Food Service Operations 

Capital Outlay: 
Capital Outlay -New 

$368.700 
35.000 

$354,855 
26.030 

($13,845) 

(8.970) 

403.700 380.885 (22.815) 

189.900 175.209 14.691 

73,588 73,373 215 

3,000 2,662 

167,312 144,491 22.82 I 

24. IO4 10.600 13.504 

457,904 406.33.5 5 I.569 

(54,204) 

29.600 

(24,604) 

31.198 

S6.594 

(25.450) 

0 

(25.450) 

31.198 

$5.748 

28,754 

(29.600) 

(846) 

0 

($846) 
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Revised 

Budget Actual 

Vt3rl,WlCE 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$68.144 $61.154 (X6.990) 

67.450 59.970 7.480 

694 I.184 490 

6.799 6.799 0 

$7.493 $7.983 $490 
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Variance 

Favorable Revised 
Budget Actual 

RWUlUeS 
Tuition 

Saks 
Charges for Services 

Interest 

Property Taxes 

Operating Grants 
Other 

Expenses 

Salaries: 
Community Services 

Fringe Benefits: 
Community Services 

Purchased Services: 

Community Serwces 

Materials and Supplirs: 

Community Services 

Capital Outlay: 
Capital Outlay-New: 

Community Servlces 

Other: 

Community Services 

Operating Transfers In 

($129.820) 
(756) 

(3) 
55.791 

(I 1.229) 

4.176 

4,601 

(77.240) 

$1.081.553 $95 1,733 

1,000 244 

300 297 

44.000 99.79 I 
613.476 662.247 

70.529 74.705 

26.856 31.457 

1.897.714 1.820.474 

907.19; 797.26 109.867 

274.666 225.842 48.824 

454.119 297.887 156.332 

148.73 I I 19.415 29.306 

18.554 3,546 15.008 

8.259 

I.452285 

368,189 

6.516 

I.291 

360.628 

9.550 

1.812.913 

84.80 I 

0 

84.801 

‘83 388 - , 

6.516 

374.705 289.904 

I .643.75 I 0 

7.445 0 

S2.025.901 

I .64;.75 I 

7.445 

$1.735.997 
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Revised 

Budget 

\‘ariance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

ElptYlSeS 
Salaries: 

Food Scrvicr Operations 

Community Services 

Total Salaries 

Fringe Benetits: 

Food Service Operations 

Community Services 

Total Friny Benefits 

Purchased Services: 

Food Servics Operations 

Community Services 

Total Purchased Services 

Materials and Supplier: 

Regular Instruction 

Food Service Operations 

Community Services 

Total tvlaterials and Supplies 

$1.081.553 
437.844 

300 

44.000 

673.476 

IOS.29 

16.856 

2.369358 X?67.5 13 (107.045~ 

$95 I .733 ($17Y.8?0) 
416.253 (21,SYl) 

297 (3) 
99.79 I 55.791 

66?.147 (I 1.229) 

IOO.735 (4.794) 

31.457 4.601 

I89.900 175209 14.69 I 

907.193 797.326 109.867 

I .097.093 9733S I2J.Si8 

73,%X 73.373 21s 

274.666 215.841 48.823 

348.254 299.2 IS 49.039 

3,000 2.662 338 

454.?lY 297.Xx7 156.332 

457219 300.549 156.670 

67.450 

l67..3l? 

148.73 I 

$383.493 

59.970 

144.49 I 

I IO.425 

$323.886 

7.480 

‘2.81 I 

24.306 

$59.607 

(continued) 
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Capital Outlay: 

Capital Outlay-New: 

Food Service Operations 

Community Services 

Total Capital Outlay 

Other: 

Community Services 

Toorol E.xpm.~ 

Revised 

Budget Actual 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$24.104 $10.600 $13.504 

18.554 3.546 I S.008 

42.658 14.146 28.5 I? 

9.550 8.259 1.29 I 

2.338267 I .918.590 4 19.677 

31,291 343.923 3 12.632 

29.600 6.5 16 (‘3.084) 

60.891 350.439 289.548 

I .68 I .748 I .68 I .748 0 

7.445 7.445 0 

S I .750.084 $2.039.632 $289.548 
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lncr~ose (~ecreose) in Gush and Cm/t Equivalem 

Cash Flows from Operatine Activities 

Cash Received from Customers 

Cash Received from Tuition Payments 

Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Cash Payments to Employees for Services 

Cash Payments for Employre Benefits 

Cash Received from Other Operatinf Revenues 

Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses 

S354.855 $61.153 SiJl $416.550 

0 0 951.733 95 I 733 

(147.1531 (29.970~ (376.620) ics3,7-!31 

( I752091 0 1797.326) (972.‘351 

173,373) 0 (23X-C) (?99..lli 

0 0 31.457 31.457 

0 0 l8.259) (8.2591 

(10.88Ol I.184 lJ24.316) (464.0121 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Pr”peny Taxes 

Operating Grants Received 

Operating Transfers In 

0 0 662.247 663.247 

26.030 0 74.705 100.735 

0 0 6.516 6.5 I6 

26,030 0 743,468 769,498 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Payments for Capital Acquisitions 

Capital Lcasc Principal Payments 

Capital Lease lnfrre5.t Payments 

(10.6001 0 (3.413) (14.013) 

0 0 l16.7601 (16.760) 

0 0 (1371 1237) 

,IO.hOO) 0 (20.4lOl i3l.OlOl 

Cash Flows from inverting Activities 

lnteres, On lnveSlme”tS 0 0 99.79 I 99.791 

,‘ier lno-em<, /Lkcreosc) in C’o.rh od (‘mh L+ivol~~r (25.450) I.184 398.533 374.267 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year .31,19x 

$5.748 

6,799 

$7.983 

1.651.196 1.689. I93 

$?.049.729 S2.063.460 

(continued) 

Food 

Serwce 

tinifornl 

School 

Supplies 
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Orange City School District 

Conrhining S,o,rnwnr ofCash ,VOM 

.-I/l Enre,‘ptw Funds (conrineedl 

For rhe F;scol l’cor Ended June 30. IY99 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net 
Cash Provided By (Used for) Operafing Activities: 

Food 

Service 

Uniform 

School 

Supplies Recreation Totals 

operaring Loss ($75.073) ($4.367) ($481.078) (S560.518) 

.Adjasrmenrs,. 

Depreciation 

Donated Commodities Used During Year 

(Increase)/Decrease in Assets: 

Accounts Receivable 

lnterpovemmental Receivable 

Invenfo~ Held for Resale 

Materials and Supplies lnventoly 

Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 

Contracts Payable 

Accrued Wages and Benefits 

Compensated Absences Payable 

Intergovernmental Payable 

TomI .~Idjt,.rmmenrs 

5,595 0 79.35 I 84,946 

25.202 0 0 25.202 

(2.450) 0 (I501 (2.600) 

899 0 (242) 657 

I.916 5,551 0 7,467 

(672) 0 (3.525) (4.197) 

0 0 (3.963) (3.963) 

0 0 11,792 I 1,792 

( 1.092) 0 (47,652) (48.744) 

7.102 0 (3.030) 4.072 

(2.307) 0 24.181 21.874 

34.193 5,551 56.762 96,506 

.\a (‘ad, Proridrd by &k-d/or/ Operalin~ .Acririria ($40.880) Sl.184 ($424.316) ($464.012) 
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Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the School District in a trustee capacity or as an agent 

for individuals, private organizations. other governments and other funds. These include expendable trust. 

nonexpendable trust and agency funds. 

Expendable Trust Fund 

Memorial Trust - This fund accounts for assets held by the School District in a trustee capacity or as an 

agent for individuals. private orgnizations. other governmental and/or other funds. 

Nonesoendable Trust Fund 

Scholarship Trust - This fund accounts for money and securities which have been set aside as an investment 

for public school purposes. The income from such a fund may be expended. but the principal must remain 

intact. 

Agencv Funds 

SpecializedStudent Aclivi@ - This fund reflects resources that belong to the student bodies of the various 

schools, accounting for sales and other revenue generating activities. 

Emplo~eeBene~f.~-Thisfundaccountsformonies withheldfromemployees’ paychecksforfuturechildcare 

and health services purchased by the employee. 

S~udenf Manugrd Activity - This fund accounts for those student activity programs which have student 

participation in the activity and have students involved in the management of the program. 

- 103. 



Assets 
Equit!~ in Pooled Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 

Liabilities 
lntcrfund Pnyahle 

Undistributed Monies 

Due to Students 

Toolal Liobiliries 

Fund Equity 
Fund Balance: 

Resewed for Contributions 

Unreserved, Undesignated 

Orange City School District 
~"n,b;,~inpBola,lceSiieer 

.4/l T~~srand.;I~~no,Funds 

Julie 30. /999 

Evpcndahle Nonexpmdahlc 

Memorial Trust Scholarship Trust Totals 

$3Y.JYR Sh8.042 $76.898 $184.43X 

$252 $0 SO 6252 

0 0 31.475 31.475 

0 0 45,423 45,423 

252 0 76.898 77.150 

0 60.073 0 60.073 

39,246 7.969 0 47.215 

39.246 68.042 0 107.288 

$39.49X $68.042 $76.898 $184.438 

IOJ- 



Revised 
Budset ACtUal 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

RWWlUeS 

Interest 
Contributions and Donations 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Support Services: 

Instructional Staff: 
Materials and Supplies 

Other Financing Uses 
Advances Out 

$1,336 $ I .450 $114 

1.072 819 (253) 

2,408 2.269 (139) 

13,641 540 13.101 

(11.233) 1,729 12.962 

( 1.072) (820) 252 

(12.305) 909 13.214 

38.589 38.589 0 

$26,284 $39.498 $13.214 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenses and Changes 

in Fund Equity Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 
Scholarship Trust 

For thr Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Revised 

Budget Actual 

VkUlCe 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 
Interest 
Contributions and Donations 

Total Revenues 

Expenses 
Other: 

Community Services 

Excess ofRevenues Over 
(Under) Expenses 

Fund Equip Beginning of Year 

Fund Equi& End of Year 

$0 $3,154 $3,754 
0 2.55 I 2.55 I 

0 6,305 6,305 

4,000 2.500 1,500 

(4,000) 3,805 7,805 

64,237 64.231 0 

$60,237 $68,042 $7,805 

106. 



Orange City School District 

Combbting Statement ojChmgrs in Assets and Liabilities 
A// Agwq FUII~F 

For the Fiscal Yeurur Ended June 30. IYYY 

Beginning 
BalalKe 

June 30. 1998 Additions Reductions 

Ending 
B&llKe 

June 30. 1999 

Specialized Studrnf AciiviQ 
Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and 

Cash Equivalents $11.562 $85.424 $74.647 $22,339 

Liabilities 
Undistributed Monies $11,562 $85,424 $74.641 $22.339 

Employee BeneJit.s 
Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and 

Cash Equivalents $8.05 I 

Liabilities 
Undistributed Monies $8.05 I 

Student Managed Acliviq 
Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and 

Cash Equivalents $36.344 

Liabilities 
Due to Students $36.344 

Total-AN Agency Funds 
Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and 

Cash Equivalents $55.957 

Liabilities 

Undistributed Monies 
Due to Students 

$8.05 I 
41.906 

Tom1 Liabilities $55.951 

$39.493 

$39.493 

$38.408 

$38.408 

$140.061 

$140.06 I 

$264.978 

$124,917 
140.061 

$264.978 

$130.982 

$130.982 

$244.037 

$I 13,055 
130.982 

$244.037 

$9.136 

$9.136 

$45.423 

$45.423 

$76.898 

$3 1.475 
45.423 

$76.898 
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General Fixed Assets Account Group 

The general fixed assets account group is used to account for all land. buildings. furniture and equipment and 

vehicles not used in the operations of the proprietary funds. 

- IOS- 



Instruction 

Total Land Buildings 

Sl7.845.769 $4355.609 S7.967.826 

Furn,tuie 

and 

Equipment 

51.167,91 I 

Suppon Services: 

Pupils 10.466 0 0 IO.466 0 

Instructional Staff 34.161 0 0 34.261 0 

Administration 6.639.678 I .605.014 3.104.815 493.652 

Fiscal 14.821 

Business 25,227 

0 

" 

0 

I .436. I97 

13.821 0 

0 0 

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 3.624.825 871.572 1.?81.899 x13.900 657,454 

Pupil Transponation X68.219 502.974 705.331 600.827 459.087 

Central 4.35.587 0 77.000 35x,5x2 

Operation ofNon-lnslructional Sewices 4.432 0 4.432 

Extracurricular .Acti\,ities 664,857 

0 

171.911 241.076 198.993 

0 

0 

52.875 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 877.041 0 877.031 0 0 - 

Orange City School District 

SchedWc q/ Gcnerui f-lied ,kwrs 

B>, h,noio,, a,rd 7:vpe 

.h,x 30 IYYY 

‘Total General Fined Assets $32.445.179 $7.‘07.081 6 14254.989 $7.665.6 I R $3.017.491 
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Orange City School District 
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets 

By Fzmction 
For the Fiscul Yew Ended June 30. 1999 

Function 

GeWXll 
Fixed Assets 

June 30. 1998 

$ I 7.695.586 

Additions Deletions 

$335.783 ($185.600) 

General 
Fixed Assets 

June 30. I999 

instruction $17.845.769 

Support Services: 

Pupils 

Instructional Staff 

0 10.466 IO.466 

Administration 

Fiscal 

I 1,007 

6.634,537 

1,919 

6.639.678 

3.547.473 

2.1 18.713 

23.254 

5.141 

12,902 

9,553 

77.352 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

(45,403) 

0 

0 

0 

34.261 

15.674 

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 

Pupil Transportation 

Central 

14.82 I 

25.227 

3.624.825 

2.268.2 I9 

Operation ofNon-Instructional Services 

Extracurricular Activities 

278,551 

0 

435,582 

4.432 

663.208 

149.506 

202,434 

4,432 

I .649 664.857 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction n 877.042 877.042 

Total General Fixed Assets $30.966.668 $1.709.5 14 ($23 I .003) $32.445.179 

IIO- 



Orange City School District 
Schedule of General Fixed Assets 

By Source 

Jum 30. IYYY 

General Fixed Assets 

Land 
Buildings 
Furniture and Equipment 

Vehicles 

$7507.08 1 
14.254.989 

7.665.6 IS 
3.017.491 

Total General Fi.red Asset.~ $32.445.179 

Investment in General Fixed Assets 

General Fund $26.906.179 

Permanent Improvement Capital Projects Fund 5,539.OOO 

Total Investment in Grneral Fixed Assets $32.445.179 
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Statistical Section 

ORANGE CITY SCHOOLS 
32000 Chagrin Boulevard 

Pepper Pike. Ohio 44 124-5974 
Phone: (216) 831-8600 FAX: (216) 831-5049 







‘I Olill 

‘Ins 

LeV) 

$?4.0??.08? 

14.63X.688 

lX.Sl3.06Y 

,7.367.‘)15 

13.077.021 

1?.760.4?7 

$I!?.602.658 97.lOOb 

?2.41?.1 I7 Y?~S8 

“.2h?.?W ‘10.7’~ 

,7.99h.hh3 93.X1 

17.77.1.6h1 9-I.xs 

li.5X2.47? ‘X13 

17.5?.~.‘,5 94.66 

16.601.1 I4 as.58 

1?.521.186 95.75 

l?.??.3,35Y 0S.E 

??,717SNS 

??.149.6?7 

18.309.1?4 

18.1?8.854 

17.886277 

16.8562 IS 

12.736.452 

96.67 

97.60 

95.43 

96.72 

96.27 

$654.088 

6 19,866 

465,616 

330.324 

541.571 

562.012 

58X.359 

5 I7.431 

2X1.062 

?69.‘175 





YtSX 

I999 

199s 

I997 

I996 

1995 

I994 

I993 

1992 

1991 

SOUKe: 

Debt Service 

Included in l.otal Lry 

School COUtlty City Total 

LW! Librarv Levy LWS’ LW) School count\ Cit\ 

$71 so %I.40 $15.30 $7.30 S95.50 $3.30 $0.7’ $0.00 

68.20 1.40 16.60 6.90 93.10 0.00 0.60 0.00 

68.1 I .4O 16.60 6.50 89.45 0.00 0.90 0.00 

68.15 I .40 16.60 3.30 89.45 0.00 0.87 0.00 

63.60 I .40 16.80 3.30 X4.10 0.05 0.76 0.00 

62.60 I .oo 16.80 3.30 x3.70 0.05 0.68 0.00 

62.60 I .oo 16.80 3.30 83.70 0.0s 0.71 0.00 

62.70 I .oo 16.80 3.30 83.80 0.15 0.80 0.00 

62.70 I .oo 16.80 4.30 84.80 0.15 0.87 0.00 

54.60 I .oo 15.30 4.30 75.10 0.50 0.80 0.00 

Cuyahoga County Auditor - Data is presented on a calendar year basis because that is the manner in 

which the information is maintained by the County Auditor. 

TOI31 

$1.02 

0.60 

0.90 

0.87 

0.81 

0.73 

0.76 

0.95 

I .07 

I.30 



Year 

Net General 
Obligation 

Bonded Debt (1) 

1999 $27,776,138 

1998 0 

1997 0 

1996 

1995 

I994 

65,000 

130,000 

195.000 

1993 

1992 

260,000 

465,000 

780,000 

1,095,000 

SOUWZ 

1991 

1990 

Orange City School District 
Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to 
Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Years 

Assessed 
Value (2) 

$747,672,867 

74 I ,007,7 16 

699,02 1,099 

693,9X3,1 12 

684,919,256 

615,281,129 

613,139,512 

605,878,631 

489.156,591 

474.290,466 

(I) School District Financial Records. 

(2) Cuyahoga County Auditor. 

Population (3) 

13,968 

13,968 

13,968 

13,968 

13,968 

13,968 

13,968 

13,968 

13.968 

NIA 

Ratio of Net 
Debt to 

Assessed Value 
Net Debt 
Per Capita 

3.72% $1,988.55 

0.00 

0.00 

0.01 4.65 

0.02 

0.03 

0.04 

0.08 33.29 

0.16 55.84 

0.23 N/A 

0.00 

0.00 

9.3 I 

13.96 

18.61 

(3) U.S. Census of Population, 1990 Federal Census. 

N/A-Not Available. 
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Orange City School District 
Cmpumtim ?fLegal Debt Margin 

.Jurw 30. 1999 

Assessed Valuation $741.672.867 

Overall Debt Limit - 9% of Assessed Value (I) $67,290.558 

Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit: 
Energy Conservation Notes 

General Obligation Bonds 
School Improvement Notes 

School Improvement Notes 
Less: Amount Available in Debt Service Fund 

ExemptIons: 

2.747.000 

29,500,000 
9.400.000 

27,100,000 
(1.723.862) 

Energy Conservation Notes 

Net Debt 

(2,747.OOO) 

64.276.138 

Overall Debt Margin $3.014.420 

Unvoted Debt Limit - .lO% of Assessed Value (I) $747.673 

Amount of Debt Applicable 

Unvoted Debt Margin 

Additional Limit for Unvoted Energy Conservation Notes: 

0 

$141.673 

Debt Limit I% of Assessed Valuation $7.476.729 

Energy Conservation Notes 

Additional Unvoted Debt Margin 

2.747.000 

$4.729.729 

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor and School District Financial Records. 

(I) Ohio Bond Law sets an overall limit of 9% for all debt and l/IO of I% for 

unwed debt. 



Jurisdiction 

Orange City School District 

Cuyahoga Count) 

Regional Transit Authority 

Orange Village 

City of Bedford Heights 

Moreland Hills Village 

City of Pepper Pike 

City of Warrensville Heights 

City of Solon 

Total 

Decrnrh& 31. IYYX 

GXleRll 

0bli:ation Percentage 

Bonded Debt Applicable to 

Outstanding School District (I ) 

$29.500.000 100.00% 

154.064.636 2.95 

107.945.000 2.95 

4.435.000 99.75 

8.4’5.000 16.74 

2.036.000 80.05 

3.180,18? 98.99 

6.495.000 4.10 

2 I .757,000 2.04 

Amount 

Applicable to 

School District 

$29.500.000 

4.544.907 

3.036278 

4.413.913 

I .4 10.345 

1.629.818 

4.137.961 

266.295 

443.843 

$49393.961 

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor Data is presented on a calendar year basis 

(Including School District) because that is the manner in which information 

is maintained by the County Auditor. 

(I ) Percentages were determined by dividins the assessed valuation of the political 

subdivision located witbin the boundaries of the School District by the total assessed 

valuation of the subdivision. The valuations used were for the 1999 collection year. 



Orange City School District 
Rario ojAnnucr1 Debt Servicr Expendilures jar 

General Obliprion Bonded Debt to Gemval Fund E.xpmditures 

Lusr Ten Fiscal Yeecrrs 

Total 

Debt 

Year Principal Interest Service 

1999 (I) $0 $0 $0 

1998 (1) 0 0 0 

1997 (1) 0 0 0 

1996(l) 65,000 1.575 66.575 

1995 (I) 65,000 4.875 69,875 

1994(l) 65,000 8.125 73.125 

1993 

1992 

1991 

1990 

SOWX 

(1) 

(2) 

Total 

General Fund 
Expenditures (2) 

$29,154,495 

26.580.720 

25,955,142 

24.485.941 0.27 

23,162,604 0.30 

23.403.283 0.3 I 

Ratio of Debt 

service to 
General Fund 

Expenditures 

(Percentage) 

0.00 % 

0.00 

0.00 

65.000 Il.375 76.375 

65,000 14.625 79,625 

205.000 21.375 226,375 

3 15,000 34. I69 349,169 

School District Financial Records. 

1994 through 1999 on a modified accrual basis. 

Includes other financing uses. 

20.378,822 0.37 

20.065.703 0.40 

18.245.469 I .24 

16.263.969 2.15 
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Year 

1999 

1998 

1997 

1996 

(1) 

1995 

1994 

1993 

1992 

1991 

I990 

Cuvahoea 

Orange City School District 
Drmopraphic sraristics 

Last Ten Yam 

. - 
COUllty 

Population (I ) 

Orange City 

School District 

Population (2) 

I ,397.694 13,968 

I .397.694 13.968 

1.398.169 13.968 

1.398. I69 13.968 

I.403239 13.968 

1.414.141 13.968 

1.414.141 13.968 

1.412.140 13.968 

I .404.2X6 13.968 

I .404.286 13.968 

Cleveland Plain Dealer Newspaper, 

School Unemployment 

Enrollment (3) Rate (4) 

2.258 4.5% 

2.276 4.0 

5.0 

4.7 

2.279 

2.246 

2.239 5.8 

2.244 

2.232 

2.234 

2.140 5.2 

2,061 5.8 

6.8 

7.6 

7.3 

(2) U.S. Census of Population, 1990 Federal Census. 

(3) School District Records. 

(4) Cleveland Plain Dealer Statistical Data Base Department 
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1999 

1998 

1997 

1996 

1995 

1994 

1993 

I992 

1991 

1990 

Orange City School District 
Property Value. Industrial Emplowwnt 

and F;mmc;al Institution Deposit.5 

Last Ten Yam 

Property 
Value (I) 

(Real Estate Only) 

$1,980,642,714 

1,961.?73,914 

1.840.205.829 

1,806,772,914 

1.784.107.543 

1,591,197.800 

l,581,272.286 

1.557.553.429 

1.244.352.229 

Industrial 
Employment 

N/A 

N/A 

NIA 

NIA 

N/A 

636.300 

627,900 

629.200 

635,700 

1.215.026.571 646.900 

Financial 

Institution (2) 

Deposits (000’s) 
Banks 

$57.02 I .360 

56.770.353 

53.941,971 

27,068.2 I I 

22.458.573 

20.885.453 

21.009.421 

19.379280 

18.392,243 

18.403.806 

SOWX Ohio Bureau of Employment Service 

and Federal Resewe Bank of Cleveland 

(1) Represents estimated actual value. 

(2) Large increase in deposits is due to Key Bank becoming a single 
charter bank in 1997. 

N/A - Not Available, 
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Orange City School District 
Principal Taxpayers 

Real Estate Tax 

December 31. 1998 

Name of Taxpayer 

Eton Square 

Duke Realty Ltd. Partnership 

AM Castle and Company 

Olympic Steel Inc. 

Pepper Pike Place 

RREEF Mid-American Fund 

Country Club, Inc. 

American Spring Wire Corporation 

PAH-Beachwood I, L.L.C. 

Cleveland Racquet Club, Inc. 

Total 

Assessed 
Value (I) 

$6,335X10 

4,270,000 

4,087,650 

2,383,850 

2,522,770 

2.193,730 

2.02 1,530 

I ,993.670 

1,933,650 

1.902.080 

$29,644.740 

Real Property Assessed Value $686.445.X70 

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor. 

Percent of 
Real 

Assessed Value 

0.92% 

0.62 

0.60 

0.35 

0.37 

0.32 

0.29 

0.29 

0.28 

0.28 

4.31% 

(I) Assessed values are for the 1999 collection year. 
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Orange City School District 
Principul Taxpayers 

Tungiblr Personal Properry Tar 
Decrmber 31. 1998 

Name of Taxpayer 

AM Castle and Company 

Olympic Steel Inc 

American Spring Wire Corporation 

Sherwin Williams dha Automotive Finishing 

Telerama, Inc. 

Southern Electric Supply Co.. Inc. 

Forest City Bahin Co. 

North Coast Distributing Inc. 

BF Goodrich Co. 

Tangible Assessed Value 

source: Cuyahoga County Auditor. 

Assessed 

Value ( 1) 

$5,549,490 

4.498,730 

4,l 16,060 

3,453,630 

1.324.490 

1,146,250 

955,610 

1.035,760 

962.860 

$23.042.880 

$37.333.996 

Percent of 
Tangible 

Assessed Value 

14.86% 

12.05 

II.02 

9.x 

3.55 

3.07 

2.56 

2.77 

2.58 

61.72% 

(I ) Assessed values are for the I999 collection year. 
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Orange City School District 
Principal Taxpayers 
Public Utilities Tax 
December 31. 1998 

Name of Taxpayer 

Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company 

Ohio Bell Telephone Company 

Assessed 
Value (I) 

$10,656,820 

2,433,570 

Percent of 
Public Utility 

Assessed Value 

6 I .86% 

14.13 

East Ohio Gas Company 1.138,450 6.61 

Total $14.228,840 82.59% 

Public Utility Assessed Value $17,227,850 

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor. 

(I) Assessed values are for the 1999 collection year 
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Orange City School District 
Per Pupil Cm1 

Last Ten F;.tcal Years 

YtXr 

General Average Daily 

Fund Student 

Expenditures (I) Enrollment 

1999 (2) 

1998 (2) 

1997 (2) 

1996 (2) 

1995 (2) 

1994 (2) 

1993 

1992 

1991 

1990 

Source: 

(1) 

(2) 

$29.154.495 

26.580.720 

25.955, I42 

243485,941 

23,162,604 

23,403,283 

20.378.822 

20.065,703 

18245.469 

163263,969 

2,258 

2,276 

2.279 

2,246 

2,239 

2.244 

2,232 

2,234 

2,140 

2,061 

School District Financial Records. 

Includes Other Financing Uses. 

1994 through 1999 on modified accrual basis. 

Per Pupil 

Cost 

$12,912 

I 1,679 

I I.389 

10.902 

10,345 

10,429 

9,130 

8.982 

8.526 

7.89 I 
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Orange City School District 

Teachw Education and E.rperience 

.Junr 30. IYYY 

DeglXe 

Bachelor’s Degree 

Master’s Degree 

Ph.D. 

Associates 

Total 

Number 

of 
Teachers 

51 

171 

2 

I 

225 

Years of Experience 

O-5 

6-10 

I I and Over 

Number 
of 

Teachers 

32 

44 

149 

225 

Source: School District Personnel Records. 

Percentafe 
of 

Total 

22.61% 

76.00 

0.89 

0.44 

I00.00% 

Percentage 
of 

Total 

14.22% 

19.55 

66.23 

I00.00% 
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OMlpe 
School 

Enrollment 

I999 

1998 

2.258 

7.2 76 

2.279 

2,246 

2,239 

5.415 

5.259 

68% 

70 

1991 5,201 69 

I996 5.197 68 

I995 5.141 61 

1994 2.244 5,151 67 

1993 2.232 5.102 66 

I992 61 

1991 

2.234 

2.140 

1990 2.061 

5.102 

5.042 

4,974 

67 

61 

Source: Statistics compiled by the Census Coordinator of the Orange Schools. 

Note: The Orange School District includes all of the suburbs of Pepper Pike. Woodmere an 
Orange. Moreland Hills. Hunting Valley, and parts of Bedford Heights. Warrensville 

and Solon. so statistics from state or city agencies are not valid in most cases. 

Number of Percentage of 

Families in Families in 

the Orange District with 

School District No Children 

Percentage of 
School-age 

Children at 

Private/Parochial 
schools 

30% 

17 

21 

21 

20 

19 

19 

I9 

21 

22 
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